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1

(Wednesday, October 17, 2008, 12:30 p.m.)

2

* * *

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

4

December 17, 2008.

5

County Board of Ethics.

6

(

Today is Wednesday,

And this is the meeting of the Maui

Before we go to attendance, the Executive

7

Secretary has asked me to make everyone here aware of a

8

few things.

9

chairs for members of the public to sit in the meeting.

The room capacity is 62 people.

We have 58

10

You need to be sure to keep a clear path to the door.

11

People can stand along the wall in single-file line

12

without obstructing the door.

13

have to do that.

14

Isn~t

It looks like we may not

that wonderful?

All testimuny needs to stop -when the timer

15

goes off.

16

testifier when the alarm goes off.

17

two times, there's no response, permission will be asked

18

to move to the next testifier and the non-responding

19

testifier will be put at the bottom of the list.

20

\,

Aloha.

The Board's Secretary will call the next
If, after calling

If there is overflow into the area outside the

21

door, the Board Secretary will make an effort to go

22

outside and call names.

23

offices because the employees and the public need to

24

access other departments.

25

Overflow cannot obstruct other

Note, the Board's Secretary will be busy with
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1

testimony, sign-in and regulation.

2

When people come to the podium to speak, they

3

will state their name and the agenda item number which

4

they are going to speak to.

5
6

If it is with regard to Mr. Nishiki's
Financial Disclosure, this is agenda Item Number 5.

7
8

Attendance, we have all Members of the Board
present.

9

(

The minutes of the November 12, 2008 meeting

10

have been circulated.

Do any Members of the Board have

11

addition or corrections to those?

12

accept those minutes as they have been submitted.

13

(Silence. )

14

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

15

We are now-ready for public

testimony.

16
17

If not, we will

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

The first testifier,

Michelle Anderson.

18

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

19

Mr. Chairman, I am going to be testifying on

20

both items.

21

items?

22

Good morning, Board.

So can I just testify all at once on both

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Please, whatever puts you

23

at ease.

24

will be up to one minute for questions afterwards.

25

You'll have two minutes to speak, and there

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

For each item?
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(

1

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

We're generous at the early

2

mornlng part of the agenda, yes.

3

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

Yeah.

I think -- I

4

think you have to give the public that opportunity for

5

each item on the agenda.

6
7

My name is Michelle Anderson.

I have supplied you with written testimony.
Has that been passed out?

10
11

And I'm here to

testify on both Item 5 and Item 6.

8
9

And I appreciate it very much.

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

No.

I will do it right

now.

12

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

13

have testimony before I begJn?

14

Mr. Chairman.

15

Could I wait until you
Okay.

Thank you,

Mr. Chair and Members of the Board, I first

16

became aware of this situation through an email

17

forwarded to me on November 18th.

18

Dave DeLeon, the Government Affairs Director for the

19

Realtor Association of Maui, and was apparently sent to

20

various realtors.

21

It was written by

It's attached to this testimony.

In it, he states, "That Wayne Nishiki never

22

filed his required personal financial statement prlor to

23

running.

24

the County Clerk."

25

"Don Couch is the former chairman of the County Board of

He recently, after the election, filed it with
Mr. DeLeon goes on to state that,
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1

Ethics, so he understands this part of the law well.

2

Don says that failure to make the financial disclosure

3

lS

4

is that failing to make this disclosure during the

5

election significantly affected the outcome of the

6

election."

an impeachable offense.

7

(

What makes this interesting

First of all, as you know, Mr. Nishiki filed

8

his financial statement on October 16th, almost three

9

weeks before the election.

As I'm sure you are also

10

aware, Section 13-13 of the County Charter provides for

11

impeachment of officers of the County.

12

not an officer of the County.

13

offic-e when he f-iled his financial statement.

14

of misinformati-on is what -has fueled thi-s- frenzy to

15

unseat a duly elected official -- candidate.

Mr. Nishiki

lS

He was a candidate for
This kind

16

The very next day The Maui News breaks the

17

story about the Dowling loan and states, "An elected

18

official found to have violated the County Ethics Code

19

could face fines or impeachment by the County Board of

20

Ethics."

21

not an official with the County and will not be until he

22

is inaugurated on January 2nd.

~3

24

They too ignore the fact that Mr. Nishiki

lS

The Maui News publishes two front page stories
and three editorials in the next nine days in which

25 -Mr. Couch accuses Mr. Nishiki of withholding information

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (SOS) 244-9300

7

1

until after the election.

2

Mr. Nishiki to be impeached or to resign.

3

November 29th editorial, they state, Voters are cheated

4

when the information is made public after the

5

information [sic].

6
7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

13

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

You are speaking to which

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

I am speaking -- it's

all interrelated.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.

-S-econdtwo minutes.

Thank you.

16
17

The Maui News recelves

item now?

14
15

Thank

your--

12

(

That's two minutes.

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

10
11

In their

you.

8
9

And The Maui News calls for

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

I thought you had two

minutes and a minute to conclude for each item.

18

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Rather than waste time,

19

what we will do lS -- absolutely, the public needs to be

20

heard.

21

sure that everybody is heard.

22

Please continue.

I don't want to stop you.

I just want to be

That's all, Michelle.

23

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

24

The Maui News recelves your agendas and could

25

Thank you.

very well have reported your October 8th meeting in
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1

which you discussed Mr. Nishiki's tardy Financial

2

Disclosure.

3

letter requiring Mr. Nishiki to file a disclosure by

4

October 16th, which he did.

5

Ethics Board Rules says that the Board shall make

6

financial disclosures available for public inspection.

7

There is nothing in the Board Rules that would allow

8

withholding the information from the public while the

9

Board reviews it.

10
11

the election.

12

Maui News failed to report it.

He disclosed it on October 16th.

And The

On OCLober 26th, The Maui News endorsed
14

Mr. Nishiki's opponent, Don Couch.

15

in the history of The Maui News, they endorsed a Council

16

candidate.

17

professional code of journalism that calls for

18

impartiality in reporting on important community lssues.

19

i

Section 4-101-30 of the

Wayne wasn't trying to hide the loan before

(

\\

They could have also followed up on your

For the first time

As our only daily paper, they breached the

On November 2nd, The Maui News published

20

General Election campaign contribution disclosure

21

reports, due on October 27th, for all candidates except

22

for Don Couch.

23

Campaign Spending.

24

candidate, Mr. Couch, and received his report in time

25

for publication.

The excuse was a computer was down at
But they could have contacted their

Even when the computer was up two days
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1

later, they still didn't publish Mr. Couch's campaign

2

contributions before the election.

3

reveals that 100 percent of the $16,000 Mr. Couch

4

collected during this one-month period came from

5

pro-development and TVR sources.

6

Not surprisingly, it

Mr. Couch filed a late contribution report on

7

November 3rd, two days late.

It reveals that, in the

8

last 10 days of the campaign, Mr. Couch accepted another

9

$16,000 from pro-development and TVR interests.

$10,000

10

of this came from out-of-state consulting firms, all of

11

them employed by Everett Dowling to design, image and

12

market Maluaka, "his ultra-high-end, second-home

13-

community centered around the finest private beach club

14

in the western hemisphere."

15

Even more revealing

lS

the final General

16

Election contribution disclosure that was filed on

17

November 5th.

18

$40,000 in the last 12 days of the campaign.

19

it came from pro-development and TVR interests, and

20

$10,000 came from in-kind services of his campaign

21

committee.

22

from pro-development interests to finance his campaign.

23

It shows that Mr. Couch received over
$27,000 of

All in al1 7 Mr. Couch collected over $70,000

The Maui News has never reported any
So who was hiding information?

o~

24

contributions.

25

a reason Mr. Couch has a vanity license plate that
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Is there

10
1

spells S-T-L-T-H?

2

According to the last three disclosure reports

3

filed by Mr. Couch, it reveals he exceeded the 20

4

percent limit on contributions from out-of-state donors.

5

The Maui News hasn't spent any time looking

6

into that or even reporting it.

7

front page stories and three editorials denigrating

8

their endorsee's opponent with misleading and untruthful

9

comments.

/

\

They have used their public platform to

10

exaggerate the situation and incite public opinion

11

against Mr. Nishiki.

12

(

Yet, its published two

It appears The Maui News has the biggest

13

conflict of interest in this whole situation.

14

c~eat

15

contributions?

16

currently looking into Mr. Couch's violation of

17

out-of-state contributions.

voters by not

publisn~ng

Did they

Mr. Couch's _campaign

The Campaign Spending Commission is

18

Amid all this sensationalism came a VOlce of

19

reason In the form of a viewpoint -- viewpoint by your

20

Chairman, explaining the parameters of your

21

responsibilities and how you must act within the rules

22

and with facts, not emotions.

23

the calming influence of this viewpoint and know you

24

will not be swayed by all the rhetoric promoted by the

25

development community, including The Maui News-.-

I appreciate very much
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1

I would like to point out that the letters of

2

complaint listed under New Business are from

3

pro-development interests, a real estate broker, a TVR

4

owner, the owner of Valley Isle Electric, and, most

5

egreglous, the circulation manager of The Maui News, who

6

does not disclose his affiliation.

7

source of these complainers and let the people of Maui

8

County have the candidate they preferred by 2,000 votes,

9

not a narrow margin, as repeatedly characterized -CHAIR KAUFMAN:

10
11

(

Please consider the

Michelle, pardon me just a

minute, please.

12

Has that been four minutes or six?

13

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Six.

-14

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

It's been six.

15

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

16

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

17

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

18

done.

Michelle, I'd like to
That's fine.

I am

I don't have -CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

1920

Okay.

-- extend your speakin.-g,or

at least the questioning.
The Chair would like to make a comment.

21

I

22

don't know if it's a question.

If you have a complaint

23

with the Maui News, you can not bring that to the Board

24

of Ethics.

25

appreciate the emotion that you have demonstrat-ed In

It's not under our purview.

But I
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1

speaking to the Board.
Do other Members of the Board have questions

2
3

for Michelle?

4

(Silence. )

5

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

6

MS. MICHELLE ANDERSON:

7

Mr. Chairman.

8

9

Thank you,

Thank you, Board.

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, Teena

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Teena, remember to state

Rasmussen.

10

(

Thank you, Michelle.

11

your name and the agenda item.

12

MS. TEENA RASMUSSEN:

13 --

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Teena Rasmussen.

The Chair also would like

14 -to remind everybody in the room- -- sorry to interrupt -15

there will be decorum.

16

when the speakers are speaking.

17

opportunity to talk; it is not while other people are

18

speaking.

You will have your

Thank you.

19
20

And that includes not speaking

MS. TEENA RASMUSSEN:

Teena Rasmussen, Agenda

Item Number 5, Wayne Nishiki.

21

Chairman Kaufman, Members of the Board of

22

Ethics:

Decades ago, our country was watching

23

television with shock as the Nixon/Watergate scandal was

24

unfolding.

25

story unfold in Illinois as it became apparent a

Fast-forward to last week, and we watched a
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1

governor had been trying to auction off a u.s. Senate

2

seat to the highest bidder.

3

watching Enron debacle unfold and seeing a company

4

vaporize before our eyes with an entire company's

5

fortunes and pension plan disappearing.

6

outraged at the Wall Street scandals, robbing trillions

7

of dollars from our hard-working citizens' retirement

8

funds and charitable foundations.

9

and we ask, "Who was turning a blind eye?

Ten years ago, we were

Today, we are

We shake our heads
Who was

10

ignoring regulations?

11

Who is trying to cover this up?"

12

writing about 2008 for decades to come, why did this

13

happen?

14

Who was sucked in by the greed?
Historians will be

We- have become a compla-cent and apathe-tic

15

country, riding high on our good economy we enjoyed for

16

more than a decade, and straying far from our core

17

values that this country was founded on.

18

undergoing a massive reality of shift, exposing us to

19

the naked truth of who we have become.

20

down to values and ethics that have been lost.

21
22

We are

And it all comes

In the midst of the global implications of
these act£ons, here we are today, in Maui County, in the

23 . basement of a County building, sitting before a group of
24

nine volunteer citizens who have an opportunity to say,

25

"Ethics must matter."
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1

Much has been printed about Wayne Nishiki, and

2

much more will be said today.

3

hired will try to tell you that because people in the

4

past have filed their disclosure forms late and received

5

little or no penalty that you must treat Wayne Nishiki

6

in the same manner.

7

by that argument.

8

who will say today, "That's just Wayne.

9

disorganized.

10
11

13

I implore you not to be intimidated
Do not be swayed by those who said
He's always

He didn't mean to do it."

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

That's two minutes.

You

may have up to one more.

12

(

The attorneys he has

MS. TEENA RASMUSSEN:
accidentally."

14

"He forgot

Don't let them trivialize his actions.

Way-ne Nishiki was savvy enoug-h to produce an

15

ad during his campaign that blasted his opponent for

16

taking a $2,000 legal campaign contribution, a donation

17

that was fully disclosed to the public before the

18

election.

19

disclosure report only to the Board of Ethics when he

20

knew it would be too late to become public opinion.

21

was savvy enough to not turn the report into the County

22

Clerk's Office on the same day because he knew that

23

would become public

24
25

Wayne Nishiki was savvy enough to turn his

±mmediately~

The act of taking $100,000 from Everett
Dowling while not holding office was not illegal, but
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He

15
1

keeping it from the public while running for office was.

2
3

You have in your power today the ability to say our

4

County is not going to do business in this manner.

5

Disclosure laws were created for the purpose of

6

government transparency.

7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

8

MS. TEENA RASMUSSEN:

9

(

The bottom line here is ethics must matter.

Teena, can you

su~~arize?

I would just like to

urge you to penalize Wayne Nishiki to the fullest extent

10

of your authority and make a statement to Maui County

11

that ethics matters to us.

12

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you very much, Teena.

13

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testi-fier, T-om

14 -Godfrey.

He alsD has submitted written testimony I am

15

going to distribute.

16
17
18

MR. TOM GODFREY:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

Board of
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Wait just a minute, please.

19

We need to distribute your written testimony and let our

20

hard-working Executive Secretary return to her seat.

21

MR. TOM GODFREY:

22

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the

2~

24

Okay.

Sorry about that.

Board of Ethics.
My name

lS

Tom Godfrey.

I've been a full-time

25 - resident of Kihei since May of 1985.

And during my 23
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1

years In paradise, I have served on the Engineering

2

Standards Subcommittee and spent many hours in this

3

room.

4

devoting to similar activities.

And I appreciate all the time you folks are

5

As far as I'm concerned; Wayne Nishiki, who I

6

have known for a number of years, should not be allowed

7

to be seated on the Maui County Council.

8
9

(

Why not?

Because he violated the Code of

Ethics which requires financial disclosure within 15

10

days of the August 1st deadline for those persons who

11

wish to run in the Primary Election for elective office.

12

We're not

13

about August 15th.

14

talk~ng

about October 15th; we're talking

His name should have beEn removed frem the

15

Primary ballot.

16

of printing deadlines, it certainly should have been

17

removed from the November ballot because he failed to

18

comply with the rules.

19

And if that was not possible, because

I quote from Article 10 of the Code of Ethics.

20

And I quote,

21

effect of law as will be necessary to provide for the

22

enforcements of the provisions of this article."

23

(f), "Adopt such rules having the force and

I ask, why was Mr. Nishiki permitted to

24

(inaudible) Financial Disclosure?

I understand there

25

were six phone calls and a letter all ignored.
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Why w-as

17
1

such leniency allowed?

2
3

Why was Mr. Nishiki not disqualified, at least
from the General Election?

4

As far as my belief, Mr. Nishiki knowingly did

5

not file his Financial Disclosure until it was too late

6

to affect the election.

7
8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Two minutes.

You have one

minute to conclude.

9

(

It should not be.

MR. TOM GODFREY:

Okay.

If we're going to

10

allow such a breach of ethics, then the election was a

11

farce.

12

voted for Couch versus 44 percent for Wayne Nishiki.

13

my opinion, if- a runoff election were held today, 70

14

percent of the voters o£ Maui would not vote for the

15

unethical Wayne Nishiki.

16

In Kihei, District 5, 56 percent of the people

I -- I hope he brought his letter of

17

resignation today.

18

his impeachment.

19
20

Thank

If he did not, please proceed with

mahalo for your time and your service

on the Board of Ethics.

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

22

Everybody can turn off their cell phone at

23
24
25

In

Thank you, Mr. Godfrey.

this moment.
I'm sorry.

Did any Members of the Board have

questions for Mr. Godfrey?
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1

(Silence. )

2

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

Okay.

Go ahead.

State your

3 .name.
4

MR. DOUG LEVIN:

5

And for the benefit of the Chair, thank you

6

for adding the extra minute.

7

minutes.

8
9

(

My name

lS

Doug Levin.

I wrote this to run three

Was Nishiki really disorganized?
at all that Wayne filed his reports late.

I don't care
I don't.

10

that was all he had done, no worries.

11

that Wayne had a $100,000 loan from a developer,

12

e~Recially

13

timely.

14

had tha-t $100,000 loan.

15

If

I also don't care

if he had filed and reported this loan

I'm also not ups-et that Wayne filed late and

If Wayne had historically been a

16

pro-development candidate, no one would have been

17

surprised by business dealings with like-minded members

18

of his community.

19

I'm also not angry because Wayne is

20

antidevelopment.

21

is out of character for him, I have met many decent,

22

otherwise qualified, people who are in fact so

~3

disorganized that they could have easily filed their

24

reports late.

25

While a transaction with a developer

I am also not initially concerned that Wayne
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19
1 _sought and obtained the endorsement of the Sierra Club,
2

a committed antidevelopment group.

3

clearly within Wayne's historical voting base.

4

But this is where my response begins to

5

change.

6

typically offer all candidates the opportunity to

7

respond to a questionnaire.

8

is, it may include a personal interview of the

9

candidates before making their final decision.

10

(

The Sierra Club is

Professional groups like the Sierra Club will

And the way the response

Did it occur to Wayne during this process that

11

they might not support him if he revealed the loan?

12

may be disorganized, but he's not dense.

13
14
15
16
17

He

Just when did he realize how dangerous- a
revelation this might be- in this

close~ election?

The Maui Time Weekly, in fact, pulled their
preelection endorsement of him once it was revealed.
About the same time, the front page of Wayne's

18

campaign website started listing real-estate-related

19

campalgn contributions made to Don Couch.

20

reporting effectively implied that Don was tainted by

21

these pro-development contributions -- contributions, a

22

classic and perfectly acceptable campaign tactic,

23

regardless of the truth.

24

this tactical advantage only because of their opponent's

25

timely filed reports.

This

Yet, note that his team had
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1

Despite these revelations so far, I still do

2

not think the situation is worthy of impeachment.

3

accept that Wayne really is disorganized and didn't

4

participate _in his campaign much, we have only

5

circumstantial evidence that Wayne knew this was an

6

issue.

But then he goofed.

7

(

If we

In an October 25th Maui News article, he

8

firmly and publicly demonstrated he knew what an

9

important campaign lssue this was.

He said, "Wayne

10

Nishiki is not for sale.

11

accepting money from major developers.

12

accepting donations, you are no

13

independent.

14

servant. "

15

Disclosures with the Ethics Board, too late for their

16

reVlew for the election.

17

Here he" -- Couch -- "is

long~r

Once you start
able to remain

People really want an independent public

He said this after he file_d these Financial

There's a word for what Mr. Nishiki did with

18

this statement.

19

form of lying.

20

won't admit they did something wrong, but an adult form

21

where, instead of denying their own association with

22

something, they dlvert attention by accusing someone

23

else.

24
25

It's called a life.

It's an advanced

Not the type children use when they

Now that we know he was aware of this critical
campaign issue, the pattern is revealed.

He knowingly
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1

committed lies of omission before the Sierra Club.

2

again, when he allowed to allow his campaign to attack

3

Don Couch unfairly on this very lssue.
I've run a little longer than I thought.

4
5

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

MR. DOUG LEVIN:

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

(

Thank you very much.
Do any Members have

questions for Mr. Levin?

11
12

Thank you very much,

Mr. Levin.

8

10

My

apologies.

6

7

Then

MEMBER WOODS:

I'm sorry.

Can you tell me,

with your information, how long has Wayne Nishiki been

13 . involved with the Sierra -Club?
14

MR. DOUG LEVIN:

And

All I knGw lS that he got

15

their endorsement.

16

It's listed on the front of his website.

17

That was a matter of public record.

I presume that the Sierra Club, being a pretty

18

well-organized, w-ell-run organization, that they went

1~

through a vetting process for him that would have

20

involved questionnaires or an interview or something

21

like that.

22

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

23

Any other

24

(Silence.)

25

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Thank you, Mr. Levin.

question~?

Chair, I have submitted --
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1

I have somebody who submitted written testimony only.

2

Did you want to accept it in the order that they signed

3

in?

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Yes.

5

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

The person

6

but I am told that he is not here.

7

distribute it right now?

8
9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

So do you want me to

Distribute it right now,

please.

10

(

Les Potts,

lS

While that's being distributed, "Aloha.

11

name is Les Potts.

12

years and always supported him in the past.

13

My

I've known Mr. Nishiki for over 30

After working with Mr. Nishiki for the past

14

nine months, trying to-work something-out with Honolua,

15

it became apparent to me that Mr. Nishiki did not seem

16

to be the man I once knew.

17

meetings, then show up tipsy and launch into a senseless

18

rant, not allowing anyone to get in a word edgewise.

19

I've tried to warn the Ohana Coalition ab0ut endorsing

20

Mr. Nishiki, but they seem to have blind faith that

21

Mr. Nishiki could still do the job.

22

He would

mis~

a couple of

In a recent writing of Mr. Nishiki, he said

23

that,

'I won the majority of the votes.

24

true, but I doubt if it would have been so if his

25

financial statement would have come out before the

r

This may be
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1

election."

2

perfect example of a crooked politician and will never

3

support him again.

Please remove him from office.

4

Mahalo, Les Potts."

5

Thank you, Mr. Potts.

6

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

7

9

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

Mahalo.

My name

lS

Angie

Hoffman.

10

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

11

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

12

Next testifier, Angie

Hoffman.

8

(

I now see -- "Now I see Mr. Nishiki as the

Speaking to Item Number 5?
The one about Wayne

Nishiki.

13-

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

14

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

15

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

16

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

17

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you.
And what's the other item?
Number 5.
What's the other item?
Well, you can speak to the

18

minutes, if you wanted to, but under New Business,

19

letters

20

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

22

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

Just Number 5.
Thank you.
I would just like to read

23

that, as requested by this Board, Mr. Nishiki filed his

24

disclosure form, which clearly discloses a private debt

25

incurred while out of office, with the Board of Ethics
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1

on October 16, 2008.

2

(

3

penalizing Mr. Nishiki for his late filing, it should

4

first conduct a full and complete investigation of all

5

candidates, as well as the County Clerk, Corp Counsel,

6

Board of Ethics, for their compliance with the law.

7

I've only been really paying attention to

8

politics for a little part of my life.

9

Kihei.

I grew up In

And for what little I have paid attention to,

10

I've seen Mr. Nishiki stand up for the little guy, for

11

the aina, you know, more than I've seen anybody else,

12

the little part that I've J

13

attention to County Council.

14

terms that he hasn't been on the Council, and I've

15

actually been paying much more attention to the issues

16

that have been corning before them, I've seen just

17

horrible corruption.

18

you know, on the Council right now like file their --

19

file a lot of stuff late, campaign donations, financial

20

disclosures, and I don't see them being punished.

21

\.

And then, also, if this Board is considering

you know, been paying
~ast

And in the

couple

And I've heard that many people,

And, you know, it's -- an earlier testifier

22

talked about some of the big corruption in this country,

23

you know, Enron, back to Nixon, you know.

24

I don't see those things being -- being punished in our

25

own Council and in our own government.

And it's like

And I just think
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1

this is -- this is sort of a -- sort of a witch hunt,

2

singling out one person, you know, somebody taking a

3

personal loan when it was a private citizen.

4

know, as far as our research, that it was handed in, in

5

time, the October 16th date.
And I just wanna conclude by saying I support

6

7

Wayne Nishiki.

8

Council.

9

Maui in the past.

10

(

I think he's an awesome person for this

He has done amazing for -- amazing stuff for
And, yeah, I just think this is kind

of shibai.

11

So that's all I have to say.

12

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

13

Any questions f-or Ms. Hoffman?

14 -

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

15

And, you

Thank you, Ms. Hoffman.

~'ve

got a question for

Ms. Hoffman.

16

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

17

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

Sure.
You say, or you've said,

18

obviously, that there are other times when you've

19

noticed that In the County Council there have been

20

issues that, In your Vlew, are illegal or inappropriate.

21

Have you taken it upon yourself during those times to

22

file testimony against those issues?

23
24
25

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

Yeah.

I've -- I've

testified a bit in the last year or so.
And I'd just like to bring up, now that you've
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1

asked me that question, I was in this room like in 2004,

2

when I started paying attention to the Makena issue,

3

which is on the County Council right now.

And it's the

4 _ first time I ever -- I went to a meeting about Makena
5

Resort in Kihei.

And it was the first time I ever went

6

to anything government, you know, was my first

7

experience like that.

8

me.

9

didn't.

And it was a huge experience for

At the time I was way too scared to testify, so I
And then I saw in the paper that there was a

10

meeting being held here, so I carne.

11

Mr. Molina, who sits on our Council right now.

12

And it was about
And it

was about the fact that his family owns land down in
1-

(

13

Makena, and that -- that he shouldn '-t be allowed to vote

14

on Makena Resort.

15

And at the time the Ethics Board agreed, they

16

said, yes, he shouldn't be allowed to file -- vote on

17

Makena Resort.

18

Mr. Molina, saYlng, "I will go by what the Ethics Board

1_9

says."

20

what the Ethics Board says.

21

know, someone to help him repeal the decision or

22

whatever.

And there was a quote in the paper by

And when that ruling carne out, he didn't go with
He found a lawyer or, you

And two weeks later, they changed their mind.

23 -And there was like two new people on the Board.
24
25

I don't know if any of you were on the Board
at the time, but I found that very mysterious.
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1

not, you know, trying to accuse anybody of anything, but

2

I found that very strange.

3

is allowed to vote right now on Makena Resort is really

4

troubling to me.

5

And, you know, this -- this person,

6

Mr. Nishiki, that, you know, has stood up so much over

7

the -- over the past few years -- sorry, I am getting

8

kind of emotional.

9

would spin this whole issue of what -- you know, what is

But, you know, just that the media

10

being brought up about him.

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

13

Abby [sic], thank you for

your comments very much.

12

(

And the fact that Mr. Molina

MS. A..NGIE HOFFMAN:

-

Thank-you.

14--

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:Than-k-¥ou very much.

15

MS. ANGIE HOFFMAN:

16

the questions.

17

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

18

MR. JOHN CARTY:

19

So, anyway, thank you for

Next testifier, John Carty.
I'm John Carty.

I am here to

speak on issue Number 5.
I see no conflict of interest of Wayne taking

20
21

a personal loan.

I find it unfortunate and unfair that

22

Wayne has to endure sucb

-23

hunt," this is wha-t it seems like to me.

24

accusations against him -- Wayne deserves better than

25

that.

well, like the word "witch
And these

I just heard testimony of Wayne showing up to
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1

meetings in a certain condition.

2

meetings.

3

with accusations like this, you know.

4

to those of you who voted him in, either, to have him

5

have to go through these accusations as well.

And I find it absurd that Wayne has to deal
And it's not fair

6

So I think I've said what I need to say.

7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

8

(Silence.)

9

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

10
11

13

Any questions?

None.

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Thank you very much.

Next testifier, Michael

Covich.

12

(

And I was at all those

MR. MICHAEL COVICH:

Good morning and thank

you.

14

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Please state your name.

15

MR. MICHAEL COVICH:

16

I have been -- I have been listening to this,

Michael Covich.

17

I've been thinking.

18

What Don Couch did, that's not relevant to this issue.

19

The

20

Mr. Nishiki should be allowed to continue -- or take

21

office or be removed after in fact he takes office.

22

~only

Couple things I have to agree on.

relevancy here is- Number 5 and whether

According to my understanding of the County

23

Code, after you file for election, you have 15 days to

24

put up your Financial Disclosures.

25

-and the County Council was talking -- anybody who was

After that period
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aware of it, whether it was In the County -- County

2

Cooperation's [sic] Office, here.

3

delayed what was necessary.

4

to comply with that.

5

Particularly, a man that sat

6

for a number of years had to have been fully aware,

7

fully aware, of what the obligations were on this.

8

All that did was

He should have been forced

He didn't have a right to say no.
has been on the Council

To me, it's election won by deceit.

And if

9

people wanna complain about Don Couch's filings, then my

10

pro -- my opinion is let's have a new election, they can

11

both run again, let's see what's happening.

12

I've spoken to, easily, 450 people about this

13

question.

14

Mr. Nishiki.

15

like the testimony of the person that was -- that was

16

read into evidence, Les Potts' -- I happen to know Les,

17

and I respect his opinion.

18

Mr. Nishiki, I would believe his opinion about that.

19

It 'B-, basically,- running eight to two against
People that have_ supported him for years,

And in his opinion about

The real deal is, is that this is gonna go to

20

court.

If you guys do not pass this along -- I mean,

21

you know, for somebody like me to go out and get 4,600

22

signatures -- and I will be able to get them -- and then

23

we're gonna end up having everybody in a courtroom.

And

24 _. everybody that's touched this thing, that had knowledge
25

of this thing prior to the -- the election, is gonna
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1

have to testify about what they did and what they did

2

not do.

3

I'm good.

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

5

Any questions?

6

(Silence. )

7

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

8

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

9

Thank you, Mr. Covich.
Next testifier, Gordon

Cockett.
MR. GORDON COCKETT:

10

(

Thank you very much.

Mr. Chairman, Members of

11

the Board of Ethics, thank you for allowing me to speak

12

today.

13

I speak on --

14

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

15

Mr. Cockett, please state

your name for the record.
MR. GORDON COCKETT:

16

My name is Gordon C.

17

Cockett.

18

three of us on this -- on this island.

19

that's born at night; the other two lQok Hawaiian.

20

said, I speak on Item Number 5.

21

And I use the middle initial because there's

As I

Let he who is without sin cast the first

22

stone.

23

first stone.

24

something cast the first stone.

25

I am the one

Let he who has never made a mistake cast the
Let he who has never forgotten to do

Those committing blasphemy here are on a witch
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1

hunt and have ulterior motives.

2

served us for many years with dignity and he has served

3

us well.

4

Thank you very much.

5

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

6

(

Does the Board have any

questions?

7

(Silence.)

8

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

9

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

10

Thank you, Mr. Cockett.
The next testifier, DeGray

Vanderbilt.

11

MR. DeGRAY VANDERBILT:

12

and Members of the Ethics Board.

13

Vanderbilt.

14

will be

15

Wayne Nishiki has

Aloha, Chair Kaufman
My name is DeGray

I'm a 30-year resident of Molokai.

testifyirr~

on Agenda Items 5 and

As I mentioned, my name

lS

6~

And I

if I may.

DeGray Vanderbilt.

16

I have been on Molokai for over 25 years.

17

on several boards and commissions and been involved very

18

heavily in community planning as Chair of the Molokai

19

Planning Commission.

20

Advisory Committee to the State Water Commission.

21

And I've been

I'm on the GPAC and on the

I only say this because I am familiar with a

22

lot of processes.

And after hearing about -- and I want

23

a call him my friend -- Wayne Nishiki, I started looking

24

into some things.

25

see that I can't understand why this is even befor-e you

And it didn't take me very long to
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1

guys.

2

I mean, if there's a complaint by people that

3

somehow Mr. Nishiki tainted the election, then that

4

complaint should have been made and filed with the

5

Supreme Court by November 24th.

6

(

It's a matter of jurisdiction.

And it wasn't.

I think all of these statements today that

7

there wasn't information available -- I read that in The

8

Maui News until after the election.

9

with the Clerk's Office and I went and met with the

So I went and I met

10

Board of Ethics staff.

And I learned that between

11

October 16th, when Mr. Nishiki's Financial Disclosure

12

Statement was available to the public through the Board

13 -of Ethics, showing the loan from Mr. Dowling -- and it's
14-- a loan, i-t' s not a donation, it's

1

0.-

loan, it's a

15

business transaction.

I found out from the Board of

16

Ethics that nobody had come to the office to ask for a

17

copy of his statement, his personal Financial

18

Disclosure.

19

same thing, nobody, between October 16th and election

20

day, had come and asked for a copy of his statement.

21

Now, somebody said he didn't file with the

I went to the Clerk's Office, they said the

22

Clerk's Office.

But if anybody had been following this,

23

whether it be Mr. Couch or whether it be the Maui

24

Chamber of Commerce or The Maui News or The Maui Time,

25

if they had been on top of this, like everybody seems to
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1

be on top of it today, they would have gone to the

2

Clerk's Office and said, "There's this information."

3

they didn't have a copy, they would have checked with

4

the Board of Ethics.

5

of Ethics, I found out, sent a complimentary copy down

6

to the Clerk's Office.

7

(

And as a matter of fact, the Board

I guess what I wanna say

lS

that Molokai is

8

proud of Wayne Nishiki.

9

ever came to Molokai during the election.

I don't know whether Don Couch
Wayne Nishiki

10

walked door to door in the major population centers of

11

Ranch Camp and Manoa Camp.

12

that.

13

marqin came from Molokai.

And he won by

14

If

2~OOO

People were impressed with
votes, and 20 percent of that

And I think if y-ouwent bac-k to people on

15

Molokai today, they would say, look it, if you had a

16

choice, looking at the credentials, looking at Wayne

17

Nishiki, they would

18

on Wayne Nishiki.

they would not change their mind

Basically, he made a loan.

19 -

He said that he --

20

it will not affect what he does.

Molokai is something

21

that says we'll give him a chance, we'll take him at his

221word, and, if, over the next two years, it shows that
23

his actions are tainted by this loan, then vote him out

24

of office.

25

But give him the benefit of his doubt.
Mr. Dowling made this transaction as a loan to
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1

a friend.

2

letters asking, well, what are the -- what are the terms

3

of the loan.

4

Mr. Dowling, if you wanted to.

5

collateral involved in the loan.

Well, that's something you could ask
But I'm sure there's no

But, anyway, the last thing I want -- the last

6

(

If Mr. Dowling wanted to -- you've gotten

7

thing I want -- the last thing I wanted to mention is

8

that we talk about the rules.

9

Board of Ethics staff and I asked them

And I -- I went to the
because each

10

year, the Board of Ethics keeps a list of when people

11

file their Financial Disclosure Statements.

12

"Could I have a copy of list, if you have one?"

13

they gava_me a copy of the list.

So I said,
And

14

Let me just finish this one statement up.

15

And on that list, there were three people that

16

didn't file their Financial Disclosures on time.

17

them was Wayne Nishiki, and one of them was Don Couch.

18

And I am not gonna mention who the third one was.

19

anyway -CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

20

That's correct.

21

you very much for that.

22

answer a couple of things that you said.

23
24
25

One of

So,

And thank

I would like to help you and
One was

incorrect.
-

You said that the Board of Ethics sent a copy
of the Financial Disclosure to the County Clerk.
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1

lS

not the case.

It is my understanding, and in fact I know for

2

3

a fact, that Corporation Counsel provided to the County

4

Clerk a courtesy copy that this Board took no action

5

regarding because we did not have it in our possession

6

at any of our meetings.
You also asked why is it before, even before,

7

(

This Board never acted to do that.

8

why is this issue before the Board of Ethics.

The issue

9

is before the Board of Ethics because of the Code of

10

Ethics, which says, lO-2(e), "The Board shall examine

11

all disclosure statements filed and to comment on or

12

advise corrective action as to any matters that may

13

indicate a confIict of int_erest."

14

here, Mr.

16

Vanderbilt~

MR. DeGRAY VANDERBILT:

15

That is why we're

Thank you,

Mr. Kaufman.

17

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you very much.

18

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, Dan

20

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Name first, item second.

21

MR. DAN GRANTHAM:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

22

My name

19

23
24

25

Grantham.

lS

Dan Grantham.

And I'm here to

testify on Item 5.
I find it ironic here that the people who are
speaking out against Wayne are the peopJ:e that are
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saying, "Well, he's gonna vote in favor of our cause."

2

It's -- the only way that he could demonstrate a

3

conflict here would be to be supportive of Mr. Dowling's

4

project.

5

(

The current Council has removed that from the

6

realm of possibility because they're running at

7

breakneck speed to get this approved before Wayne has

8

any chance to take office.

9

he's going to have a conflict, obviously.

So they don't believe that
They are very

10

concerned, probably, that his questionings may be -- not

11

having Mr. Hokama's vote on the Council might jeopardize

12

Mr. Dowling's project approval.

13

have a chance to vote Dn that.

14

I

So Wayne is never gonna

know Mr. Dowling and Wayne both.

And my

15

conclusion about this would be that Dowling gave Wayne a

16

loan after he got off the Council because he wanted to

17

see him in business, successfully in business, so busy

18

that he would never consider coming back to the Council.

19

You know, there's -- there's -- you are

20

charged with holding candidates to a higher standard,

21

you know, or officials to a higher standard, where not

22

just should there be no -- no conflict of interest, but

23

there should be no appearance of one.

24

that now that there's been such a big deal made out of

25

this that if you don't tell Wayne,

And I'm afraid

~Wayne,

you go on the
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1

Council, you ask Dowling all the questions that you

2

would ask him normally, you do a good job, or we're

3

gonna have to assume that there's a conflict of interest

4

because you're not behaving the way you would normally",

5

This -- you know, ordinarily

6
7

(

Two minutes.

Go ahead and

MR. DAN GRANTHAM:

Ordinarily, an official

conclude.

8
9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

could just simply abstain from a vote.

And I assume

10

that was what Wayne would do if the vote for Dowling

11

became necessary.

12

because the newspaper has blasted it allover the world,

13

because there's this hearing, now if he doesn't db his

14

darnedest to do a good job _in all proj-ects , including

15

Dowling's, suspicions will be raised and it's gonna look

16

like he's holding on.

17

But because this has been raised,

So I ask you to instruct Wayne, "Wayne, when

18

you go on that Council, you have a special duty to show

19

that there is no conflict of interest.

20

Dowling have a completely separate relationship with

21

your loan.

22

obligation to do your job and ask questions."

And you and

When you're on the Council, it is your

23

Thank you.

24

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

25

Any questions?

Thank you, Mr. Grantham.
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1

(Silence.)

2

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

3

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

4

MS. ZANDRA SOUZA-AMARAL:

Next speaker.
Next speaker, Z. Amaral.
Good afternoon,

5

Board Members.

6

am speaking on Item Number 5.

7

State of Hawaii for 56 years, the Territory of Hawaii

8

for two years, I am a resident of Kihei, and a former

9

candidate to the County Council seat for Kihei.

10

My name is Zandra Souza-Amaral.

I voted for Wayne.

11

But it broke my heart.

12

loan from Mr. Dowling.

13

And I

I am a resident of the

I have no ulterior motive.

And not because Wayne took that

Mr. Dowling is a man I know, a man I respect.

14

And I s_upport Makena Resort.

However, for the people of

15

Kihei, they are the -- they have the most to lose.

16

Wayne Nishiki, not Mr. Dowling, but every citizen that

17

lives In the community of Kihei, Makena and Wailea,

18

which is wh€re our representative

Not

lS.

19

Wayne will not be able, Board Members, to

20

speak on any issue involving development in Makena,

21

Wailea, or any development that Everett Dowling has

22

before him.
Now, I must reiterate, I respect Everett

2~

24

Dowling.

25

community.

And I support the man because he supports our
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And I

1

respected Wayne Nishiki for many years.

2

We grew up In this community together.

3

us.

And he supported

He spoke when the issues were hard.

And I voted

4 _ for him on that premise, because I also respect Don
5

Couch.

But it wasn't the loan that bothered me.

6

I

see Wayne Nishiki as being kind of like me

7

and some of you or your kids.

8

times, we have alternatives.

9

hands out and ask for help -- which I

We can either reach our
know is very

10

difficult for myself, and I know it

11

Mr. Nishiki -- or we can go out and steal, something

12

that our society does not condone, or we can just stay

13- home and get depressed.
14-

he made a decision.

15

opposing.

16

I

lS

for

He's a man, he's a human being,

That is not what I

stand before you

stand before you opposing the fact that he

17

used this issue, this very issue, to tell the people of

18

Kihei and Maui Nui that Don Couch was not worthy of our

19

votes because he was in the pockets of developers.

20

And, again, I must close, Board Members, it is

21

not the issue of him making the loan, it's the issue of

22

howne used it that really, really bothers me.

23-

(

When we are in hard

And, again, I close in saying that to -- to

24

blame and -- and deflect attention away from what Wayne

25

did by blaming The Maui News, Mr. Dowling, Mike Molina
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1

or anybody else, is moot.

2

broke any rules, let the community bring them before

3

you.

If they

They are not as what is on your agenda.

4

And in closing, I would like to say, Board

5

Members, you do not have a -- an easy task before you.

6

But In closing, my last sentence, I will tell you, I

7

know that you will use the relevant law that you have

8

before you to make a decision.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

10

(

It's not relBvant.

will.

That's right, Zandra, we

Thank you very much.

11

MS. ZANDRA SOUZA-AMARAL:

12

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

13

Leste-r.

14

will di-stribute.

15

You're welcome.

Next testifier, Sean

He's al-so submitting writ-ten testimony which I

MR. SEAN LESTER:
Sean Lester.

Mr. Chair, Members, my name

16

lS

I'm here on both Items 5 and 6.

It's

17

just something that have -- I'm gonna be talking, you

18

guys are gonna be reading, so we'll try to work it

19 _together_, if we can.
First of all, I just wanted to speak very

20

I think Daniel Grantham might have a very

21

quickly.

22

novel approach as to the possibility of how to take care

23

of Mr. Nishiki I-S way of working on the Council.

24

would be nice to see a Council Member who actually was

25

told by the Board of Ethics to do the right thing.
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1

would really like to see that.
And I'd also like to state that Michelle

2

3

Anderson's findings on Don Couch's filings are correct.

4

I have checked these out myself.

5

documentation.

6

today, so I didn't bring it.

7

to give you the stack of filings that show that he filed

8

$30,000, over half of the -- almost half of the funds

9

that he got --

I have the

I didn't think it would be germane
I would be more than happy

10

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

11

Mr. Nishiki's Financial Disclosure --

12

MR. SEAN LESTER:

(13

CHAIR_KAUFMAN:

14

MR. SEAN LESTER:

15

very much.

Are you speaking to

Well--- today, or to Mr. Couch'sT
That's right.

Than-k y:ou

Okay.

16

Anyway, I am back (inaudible) as well.

17

My name is Sean Lester.

I'm here to give some

18

testimony in the case of Wayne Nishiki.

I've spent a

19

considerable amount of time -- my time trying to

20

understand the questions before this Board in regards to

21

Mr. Nishiki.

I do understand the Board will make a

determination as to the scope of Mr. Nishiki's need to

.22

23 . recuse himself in regards to lands owned by Dowling.
24
25

And I know this is a standard procedure.

I

I've brought

things be-fore this Board over the last decade.
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1

I have also reviewed the records of a sitting

2

council member to find trends in this Board's handling

3

of filings.

4

Title MC-04, Subtitle 1, your Maui County Board of

5

Ethics.

I'd like to share with you several points.

6

(

I've also downloaded and reviewed your

You requested of Mr. Nishiki turn in his

7

Financial Disclosure on a certain day, on the 16th.

8

complied.

9

you, this Board, in turn, did not release it to the

He

When Mr. Nishiki released his information to

10

public until after next hearing.

Now, I don't know

11

how

12

get that at that particular time, but it was turned into

the internal workings of that one, if you didn't

13 - Corp Counsel.-

There isn't one place I could Yind In the

14

35 pages 0-£ your rules that state you're required to

15

hold on to this type of information.

16

be a simple Financial Disclosure.

17

Mr. Nishiki from the point he turned In the report.

18

do question the wisdom of this body, of whichever body

And it seemed to

I cannot fault
I

19 _it was, that did not release that.
20
21
22
23
24
25

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Two minutes.

One minute

more.
MR. SEAN LESTER:

Thank you.

I am speaking to

both, both items.
In this case, I request that you review your
policies to see if maybe in the- future myself and o-ther
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1

voters can get the information more quickly.

2

(

Okay.

The second point I wanted to bring to

3

your attention is the comments raised as to Mr. Nishiki

4

not turning his paperwork into the County Clerk.

5

Historically, if paperwork is turned into the Corp

6

Counsel, Corp Counsel will give a copy to the County

7

Clerk.

8

Molina's August 15, 2002 filing.

9

could have been filed in a timely manner, per your

I furnished you with a copy of Councilmernber
It was the last day it

10

Rules.

It was filed with Corp Counsel, not the County

11

Clerk.

So I obtained a copy from the County Clerk.

12

Corp Counsel glves it to County Clerk, and then we get a

13

copy on this end.

So

So you hav-e been doing this type o£

14 _thing, as Mr. Nisbiki has dnne, and accepted- it, at
c

15

least since the date of 2002.

16

And I guess today in this whole crazed time of

17

emotions and whatever else is going on, I, too, have a

18

real challenge with Mr. Dowling.

19

I don't have a problem wi±h Wayne Nishiki

20

because I've spent over a decade working with him on the

21

Council.

22

You have it publicly; I have it personally.

23

really feel that Mr. Nishiki can do his work.

24

to this Board J

25

parameters will look ethical, but I do believe that he

And ethics is -- is my game, too, personally.
And I
It's up

I believe, to ensure that the scope and
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1

can do his work effectively.

2

Thank you very much for your time.

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

4

Any questions?

5

(Silence. )

6

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

7

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, Vincent

MR. VINCENT MINA:

Aloha, Chair, and Board.

8

Thank you for allowing me to testify.

11
12

(

Could you please read why we're here agaln
today so I'm not to stray off the agenda?

13

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

14

and the item number that --

15

MR. VINCENT MINA:

Yeah.

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

From the Code of Ethics,

16

And state your name

Vincent Mina, Agenda

18

10-2(a).

19

_statements filed and to comment on or advise corrective

20

action as to any matters that may indicate a conflict of

21

interest."

22
23

24
i

Yes.

Number 5.

17

\

Thank you.

Mina.

9

10

Thank you, Mr. Lester.

25

"The Board shall examine all disclosure

MR. VINCENT MINA:
about a conflict of interest.

Okay.

So we're talking

Okay.

Well, obviously, there isn't a conflict of
interest if Wayne took a loan from Mr. Dowling outside

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (808) 244-9300

45
1

of office.

2

What I'd like to speak to today, associated

3

with that, is your sensibilities as a Board and as

4

individuals, as the -- as is this about -- truly about

5

ethics.

6

hearing a lot of people trying to make somebody a wrong.

7

Seems to me they just want to be right about them being

8

wrong, you know.

9

Let's make Wayne an example here."

I mean, "Let's make Wayne wrong.
And it's not about

10

-- it's not about being right in life, you know, it's

11

about being pono.

12

(

I'm hearing a lot of pontificating today, I'm

And I've known Wayne for 28

~ears.

13

bugger, he annoyed me

14

had to surround myself, therefs probably a handful of

15

people -- and, you know, I work the land, yeah, I'm a

16

farmer.

17

me unless I know who they are.

18

And -- and truly it's -- I'm -- I'm happy to call him a

19

friend.

20

needed him and any time of trouble.

21

plenty~

plenty.

And the

And, yet, if I

And I don't -- I don't let people that close to
And I know who Wayne

lS.

And I know that he would be right there if I

And so, you know, I know this

lS

not gonna be

22

decided by my testimony, yet, at the same time, it's

23

something where I truly appreciate the fact that you

24

folks are here today and -- and listening to -- I mean,

25

this is pretty -- a lot of this drama

lS

like unreal,
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1

you know.

2

because that's what's real to me, you know.

3

(

I mean, that's why I like work the land,

So thank you for your time.

And I

again, I

4

support Wayne and -- and continuing on with being a

5

council member for us.

6

need the -- you know, the other side of the scale.

7

not about us versus them, it's not about anti versus

8

development.

It's about -- you know, I don't like the

9

polarizing.

I like us to be able to live on an island

Because we need the polarity, we
It's

10

that we're gonna be able to take care of our children

11

and our children will know that they'll have an island

12

to be able to nurture and -- and sustain their

13c

well-being.

14~

So thank y<:)u very much.

15

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

16

Any comments for Mr. Mina?

17

MEMBER WUKELIC:

Thank you, Mr. Mina.

I have one comment.

Just as

18

you addressed us, just as a reminder, what we as a Board

19

have to remember is it's not about Marti Wukelic's

20

ethics or Alan Kaufman's ethics, it's -- it's how all of

21

this information gets into these rules.

22

we have to do In that little narrow corridor of

23

information.

24

MR. VINCENT MINA:

Uh-huh.

25

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you.

So that's all

Uh-huh.

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (808) 244-9300

47
1

MR. VINCENT MINA:

Yeah.

2

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Next speaker.

3

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, Mark

MR. MARK SHEEHAN:

Good afternoon.

4

Sheehan.

5
6

(

Sheehan.

I'm Mark

I am testifying on Item Number 5.

7

I am curious that this item is before you.

8

Does it require someone file a complaint so that the

9

issue is brought to your attention?

10

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

What we are doing today, we

11

don't have a complaint in front of us.

12

MR. MARK SHEEHAN:

Okay.

13

CHAIRMAN

What we have at this point

~AUFMAN:

14

ill

time is onl-:¥ the examination of Mr. Nishiki' s_

15

financial statement.

16

complaint can do that.

17

which

18

happy to share that with you.

lS

outlined.

Any individual who wants to file a
There's a procedure to do that

And Corporation Counsel would be

MR. MARK SHEEHAN:

19

Okay.

But it's just

20

Mr. Nishiki who is being examined and no other

21

candidates who were elected to office are having

22

anything

Z3

24

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Mr. Nishikirs financial

statement is the only financial statement from this past

25 -election that has not been reviewed in full by this
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1

Board.

2

MR. MARK SHEEHAN:

Well, I came to

3

speak on his behalf.

4

been a lot of slander against Mr.

5

unfortunate.

6

has to do with your following the rules and determining

7

whether or not he met the criteria for submitting his

8

data to you by October 16th.

9

that he did; is that correct?

10
11

My understanding is that there's
Nishiki, which is

It seems to me that the issue before you

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

And my understanding is

Not quite, Mark.

It's a

little bit more involved than that.

12

(

I see.

MR. MARK SHEEHAN:

Okay.

Well, it seems to me

13

tha-t he did, he made that effort.

14

reprimand him, maybe that's within the purview of your

15

authority.

16

And -- but I do want to say that having lived here

17

through the tenure of his -- his terms In office, I know

18

that he is upward with integrity.

19

knows if it's appropriate to recuse himself if there's a

20

conflict.

21

really the -- the main issue.

22

to take it any further than that.

23

And so if you wish to

I don't think you're here to impeach him.

And I know that he will.

And he certainly

So I think that's

And I don't think we need

There are plenty of examples of people --

24

Mr. Starr had an issue before the Planning Commission, a

25

conflict with Mr. Dowling, he recused himself# his vote
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(

1

was recorded as a no.

And I think the same thing would

2

occur if there's a conflict of interest with this issue.

3

If Mr. Nishiki proceeds to office, he can get a loan

4

from the -- from the credit union and

5

Mr. Dowling, and will remove that cloud.

6

him to do that.

and payoff
And I expect

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

Any questions from the Board for Mr. Sheehan?

10

(Silence.)

11

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

12

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Thank you, Mr. Sheehan.

Next testifier.
The next testifiers

13

actually have written testimony, two peo_ple, Jock

14

Yamaguchi and Sara-h Dyal -- I'm sorry, I don' t

15

to pronounce your last name, but Freistat.

16

going to

17

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

~now

how

So I am

Could you hand it to me

18

first, please?

And I'll probably try to read the

19

testimony while you're passing it out.

You have tw01

20

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

They submitted it together.

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.

"Dear Mr. Kaufman,

22

Members of the Board:

Aloha and thank you for allowing

23

to us testify on this matter.

24

of testimony both in support of and opposed to the

25

matter relating to Wayne Nishiki.

There is sure to be a lot

Accordingly, we
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1

respectfully ask that your decision be based upon the

2

law and facts rather than emotional allegations by those

3

bitter about losing an election.

4

and ask that this Board consider the following:

5

Discussion of this matter appears premature.

6

We ask this Board to first determine whether its

7

deliberation on this matter is ripe for discussion.

8

us, it seems premature as a penalty, if any, for a late

9

disclosed financial form would be imposed on an officer

To

10

of Maui County rather than a candidate-elect who has yet

11

to be sworn in.

12

(

We support Mr. Nishiki

2:

Any discussion should focus on the facts

13

of law rather than emotional and unsubstantiated

14

allegations.

15

Mr. Nishiki was not an elected officer nor a candidate

16

when he incurred a debt from Mr. Dowling in 2005.

We as k this Board mak.-e it clear that

17

Unfortunately, a few individuals are

18

attempting to bring old, previously resolved issues into

19

current discussion

20

to the matter at hand.

21

again~

Again, these are irrelevant

Pursuant" -- number three -- "to the Board of

22

Ethics' request, Mr. Nishiki filed his disclosure form

23

on October 16th, 2008, nearly three weeks before the

24

election.

25

We are then quoted from the Rules of the Board
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1
2

(

of Ethics, 04-101-30.
"As requested by this Board, Mr. Nishiki filed

3

his disclosure form which clearly discloses a private

4

debt incurred while out of office.

5

Mr. Nishiki open and honest with his disclosure

6

statement, but any penalty imposed by this Board would

7

ignore the fact that Mr. Nishiki was in full compliance

8

with this Board's request.

9

Ethics for setting the October 16th disclosure deadlines

Not only was

We applaud the Board of

10

for Mr. Nishiki so it would meet the requirements of

11

04-101-30 of its rules.

12

meet its deadline, the Board assured that Mr. Nishiki's

13

disclosure form woul-d be on file- wi th the County for

14

almost three weeks before the December 4th election, and

15

readily available for public inspection.

16

By requiring Mr. Nishiki to

The Board of Ethics should treat candidates

17

and elected officials, past and present, equitably and

18

evenhandedly."

19

I think that this Board can agree with that.

20

And I will let the other Members finish

21

reading on their own.

22

There's one thing I do need to point out.

Z3

People keep referring to the October 16th deadline.

24

-- I need to make clear, this Board does not set, make

25

State or County laws and regulations.

I

We review at this
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1

point Financial Disclosures.

2

submission of the Financial Disclosure was 15 days after

3

the nomination papers.

4

that people are clear that what the County requires and

5

what the Board asked of Mr. Nishiki are not the same

6

issue.

And I just want to make sure

Those are separate things.

7

Thank you for that information.

8

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

9

Next testifier, Jeffrey

Parker.

10

(

The date for the

MR. JEFFREY PARKER:

Good afternoon,

11

Mr. Chairman and Board.

12

gonna represent my company, too, Tropical Orchid Farm,

13

Inc.

14

My name's Jeffrey Parker.

I'm

r'ID- a fa-rmer.
F~irst,

r' d

like~

to say that I do question the

15

motives of some of these people that are so upset with

16

Wayne.

17

case is irrelevant.

18

sitting Council Member doing a blatant ethical violation

In that regard, I don't think the Mike Molina
Why aren't you concerned about a

19 . in a vote on a -- on wha± was actually a Makena project?
20
21
22

And so the -- the motives might be in question there.
Now, having said that

oh, and would I bring

a ethics complaint against Mike Molina?

No, I wouldn't.

23

So I've been a farmer for 30 years.

24

during that timer I was involved in a lot of issues at

25 . the County Council.

And

I had a chance to observe Wayne in
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1

action.

And it's funny, because Wayne is the most

2

ethical person that's ever served on the County Council

3

other than Michelle Anderson.

4

And the reason I'm representing my company

5

today is Wayne Nishiki was the best advocate for farmers

6

and farming issues that we've ever had in our farming

7

community.

8

Rasmussen, doesn't acknowledge that as well.

9

(

I'm surprised my other farming friend, Teena

And so this is a very trying time ahead for

10

the Council.

11

gonna have to give up our water in East Maui to fuel

12

more development?

~3

14

There will be water issues.

Are -- are we

And it's a matter of balance.

need Wayne Nishiki on the County Council.

And we

And I just

hope you ke€p that in mind.

15

And in conclusion, I'm not an attorney, but I

16

-- one thing I do understand is that whatever you folks

17

come up with, it has to be consistent with your previous

18

rulings.

19

Thank you.

20

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

21

There will be no applause.

22

decorum in this room.

23

You are not

24

applause are not indicated.

25

have it.

~peaking

Thank you, Mr. Parker.
We will have

You have been very good group.
when other speakers are, but
And this Chair will not
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1

The next testifier, please.

2

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

3

MR. BRUCE ERFER:

4

My name is Bruce Erfer.

I'm

here to speak on Agenda Item 5.

5

After hearing that you're only listening to

6

issues regarding conflict of interest, I have to change

7

what I've -- I've written because I've written other

8

things.

9

I've written about.

10

(

Bruce Erfer.

But I can talk to some of these issues that

I strongly believe that persons who run for

11

office as our representatives should be held to a much

12

higher standard than we typically hold even ourselves.

13

If you

14

ethics should be no weTse or different than mine.

15

fact, you should be better.

16

wannarBpres~ntme,

your moral standards and
In

Hence, I ask you to recognlze the conflicts of

17

interest that are before you and to respect me as a

18

voter and others like me.

19

of the information that wa_s filed later, October 16th,

20

by Wayne Nishiki.

21

lS part of the reason we have these laws.

22

As a voter, I was not aware

Voters should be aware of this.

This

The exposure of financial conflict issues are

2-3

paramount to any public office.

In my five years with

24

the Real Property Tax Board of Appeals, I, in a timely

25

manner, completed the information needed by your
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Committee on five different -- for each of thos-e five

2

different years.

3

had loaned money to an appellant.

4

Similarly, in my current volunteer position as

5

a lobbyist for the National Community Association

6

Institutes, significant conflict of interest information

7

had to be submitted and is reviewed every year before

8

they agree to allow me to be a registered lobbyist.

9

(

I recused myself the one time where I

In this County, more than many, when we elect

10

officials, we settle for recognition of ethics and

11

morality, sometimes, over real qualifications and real

12

success.

13

the needed honesty and transparency of each person who

14

runs or

15

And in some manner, this is okay.

lS

But without

elected to of£ice, we are re-ft with nothing.
I rarely use emotion to rationalize my

16

behavior, but in this case I need to continue to have

17

the faith and trust in my government that only you can

18

currently effect.

I ask you to do the right thing.

19

Thank you.

20

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

21

Are there any questions for Mr. Erfer?

22

(Silence.)

23

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Erfer.

Next testifier, Lloyd

Fischel.
MR. LLOYD FIS-CHEL:-

Good afternoon.
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1

you very much.

I'm a farmer.

And I'd just like to -- to shed a little bit

2

(

Lloyd Fischel from Haiku.

3

of light on something.

We corne to you today with great

4

emotion.

5

because there's so many people interested in this issue.

6

And we have to understand -- we all have to understand

7

that we wouldn't have this emotion that we hav€ today if

8

there wasn't a misstatement published when this was

9

announced in The Maui News, our only newspaper.

Obviously, we have this larger room here

And the

10

people that perpetuated that lie, that in fact he had

11

not filed before the election, didn't corne forward and

12

make that an explicit understanding in our community.

13 -And that's what's created this foul odor.
L4

Yes, you have ,-as the Ethics CDrnmi t tee, an

15

obligation to look into this matter.

16

you are going to do it fairly.

17

with bigotry and unhappiness and confusion in our

18

society, due to a lie that was perpetuated by our only

19

newspaper and certain individuals, then we have to

20

reanalyze what is the basis of our analysis of

21

Mr. Nishiki's late filing.

22

And we assume that

But when we corne here

And I think that's very important that you

23

take that into consideration.

If the lie hadn1t been

24

perpetuated right from the beginning J

25

very different tone.

this would be a

Becaus-e the man filed late, but
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1

before the election, lS very different than a man filing

2

late and after the election, this kind of a disclosure.

3

Thank you very much.

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

5

Are there any questions for the testifier?

6

(Silence. )

7

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

8

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

9
10

None.
Next testifier, Pamela

Tumpap testifying on behalf of the Maui Chamber of
Commerce.

She's also submitting written testimony.
MS. PAMELA TUMPAP:

11

(

Thank you.

Aloha.

I am Pamela

12

Tumpap, President of the Maui Chamber of Commerce.

13

I'm here to talk about Item 5 on the agenda today.

-14

You know, from

And

first of all, we are pleased

15

that the Board of Ethics is taking this up.

16

that this was part of what you do and do the reVlew, and

17

we appreciate you making accommodations to allow as many

18

people to corne before you today to testify.

19

We know

From our view, there's really kind of f-aur key

20

points at hand.

First, this is all about process.

And

21

did Mr. Nishiki follow the process outlined by law.

22

Second, did the candidate operate ethically or was there

23

a breach of ethics.

24

correct.

25

in one or more of these areas, what remedies should be

Third, is his Financial Disclosure

And, if the candidate failed his obligations
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1

employed.

2

On the issue of process, the stated timeline

3

was not met.

4

made and time went by before Mr. Nishiki complied.

5

This is something, though, that he already

6

admitted in the Maui News, noting that he completely

7

didn't respond when they asked him about the filing and

8

there was really no excuse.

9

straightforward.

10

(

After several reminder attempts were also

So this area seems fairly

With respect to the ethical concerns, the

11

situation raises a number of questions because the

12

candidate has run for elected office many times and

~3

certainly should know what the disclosure filing rules

1~

and timeline are.

15

Further, how the candidate chose to file the

16

Financial Disclosure is disturbing as this person also

17

understands the inner workings of the County Government.

18

When the document was finally submitted, he

19

submit it to not the County Clerk's Office, as required,

20

but Corporation Counsel.

21

made public prior to the election.

22

he did

And the information was not

Many people believed that this public -- this

23

lack of public disclosure changed the outcome of the

24

election.

25

be looked into.

And so that's something that we feel should
It's also a little bit more disturbing
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1

as this person runnlng for office made regular

2

antidevelopment sentiments and had a long-standing

3

public stance and criticism of developer money.

4

Therefore, there is a definite question as to

5

whether the individual intentionally circumvented the

6

County process to avoid public disclosure of the

7

required information prior to election due to his

8

significant outstanding loan from a developer.

9

is what speaks to an ethical question that you are

10

taking up here.

11

(

And that

Regarding the accuracy of the Financial

12

Disclosure itself, very siIr!Rly, we get a lot of calls,

13

and many want to know, particularly in these- economic

14

times,

15

year is able to repay $455,000 in debt.

16

hOvJ~a

person -with a state-d lncome of $18,000 a

We feel that the process is important and is

17

in place for a reason.

18

body to perform a full and complete investigation of the

19

Financial Disclosure filing, to determine whether this

20

newly-elected South Maui Council Member has fully

21

complied with the County applicable law.

22

That is why we have asked this

We appreciate that you are investigating this

23

matter and getting answers.

And we know that you will

24

come to a decision and finding.

25

that the candidate did not fully comply with the process

And should you find
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1

and law, we request that you take appropriate Board

2

action.

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

4

We really used up the time for questions, but

5

we are not investigating at this point, we're simply

6

reviewing.

Thank you.

7

MS. PAMELA TUMPAP:

8

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Thank you.
Next testifier, Jonica

Hall.

9

10

MS. JONICA HALL:

11

Hall.

12

(

Thank you.

Aloha.

My name

lS

Jonica

And I'm commenting on Item Number 5.
I have been a resident of Maui, overall, for

13

aboQt ID years.

14

Oahu, and sI3-ent time here on Maui from the seventies to

15

the early eighties, and moved back in 2003.

16

I am a local girl, originally from

I'm compelled to be here today for a simple

17

reason.

I was robbed.

My voice on this Council was

18

stolen by a man who knowingly misrepresented himself.

19

That man is- Wayne Nishiki.

20

Mr. Nishiki is a seasoned political

21

professional who knows the rules, and, apparently, knows
~~

-

22

how to break them.

I cannot. fathom how Mr. Nishiki

23

failed to recognize his significant involvement with

24

Mr. Everett Dowling, one of the most controversial

25

developers in Maui County, in his Financial Disclosure.
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In addition, Mr. Nishiki must understand the

1

2

requirements of this disclosure.

3

$100,000 loan to Mr. Nishiki from Mr. Dowling In this

4

disclosure is no less than egregious.

5

you overlook $100,000?

6

flat out or by omission.

7

How on earth do

And a lie is a lie whether it is

Mr. Nishiki's defense, he wasn't In office at

8

the time of his bankroll from Mr. Dowling.

9

not what the Financial Disclosure asks of him.

10

Well, that's
It asks

what his finances were, period.

11

(

Admission of a

As a consequence, the selfish decision by

12

Mr. Nishiki to omit this particular disclosure has led

13

to a decision by the Council to -prohibi t Mr. Nishiki

14

from voting on any of Mr. Doweling's proposals.

15

as a South Maui resident, the best that I can hope for

16

when it comes to Council votes on Mr. Dowling's

17

potential overreaching plans is nothing.

18

to prevent Mr. Nishiki from holding this office.

20

begotten by a lie and a scam.

21

after all, the season of change.

22

Mahalo.

23

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

25

now~;

I implore this Council to do whatever it takes

19

24

So

This is supposed to be,

Are there any questions for

Ms. Hall?
CHAIR KAUFMAN:

It was

Thank you very much.
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1

(Silence.)

2

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

3

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

4

Next testifier, Leilani

Bronson Crelly.

5

MS. LEILANI BRONSON-CRELLY:

6

My name's Leilani Bronson-Crelly.

7

on Item Number 5.

8
9

(

Next testifier.

Good afternoon.

And I am testifying

And I want to thank you for this opportunity
to corne before you.

And I hope that when you consider

10

and review this matter that you will see that

11

Mr. Nishiki is able to divest himself from any type of

12

conflict, if he does go on to become a councilman.

13

I also want to note that I was Mr. Nishiki's

14

aide.

And that was a fascinating opportunity, to say

15

the least.

16

longest-lived aide.

17

At the time I claimed I was the
I was with him for three years.

And, yes, it is a fact, the man is -- where is

18

he -- disorganized.

19

understand truth, to understand the kernel that is_

20

before him in his decision-making.

21

rare, it

22

But he has a unique ability to

And that's really

lS.

I'm very proud of the things that Wayne has

23

done for the CDunty.

And I'm sure you are, too.

24

are many places -- I've alwayB been so -- it's always so

25

difficult to testify before you guys.

But,

Th~re

an~way,
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1

there are many places that you and I can go to today

2

because of Wayne, and there are many places that have

3

been removed.

4

(

So if the issue is conflict of interest and

5

whether or not he can make the distinction, yes, the

6

answer is, yes, he can.

7

consider that In your review.

And I hope that you will

8

Happy holidays.

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you very much.

10

Any questions?

11

(Silence. )

12

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

13

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, David

MR. DAVID DeLEON:

Good afternoon.

14

Next testifier.

DeLeon.

15

I'm here

16

to speak on Item Number 5.

17

I'm here to speak as an individual and an outraged

18

voter.

19

My name's Dave DeLeon.

And

Today, you hear a lot of laudatory comments.

20

You just heard one from Leilani, who is a good friend of

21

mine.

22

Wayne has served in the interest on the County Council

23

and he's served as that guy who will stand up against

24

development and he's a strong man.

25

relatively irrelevant in here.

And I really would kind of second that.

And

All of that is

This is not what thi-s
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1
2

The question is whether there was a breach of

3

the Code of Ethics, not whether Wayne Nishiki is a

4

(inaudible) of humanity, an excellent father or any

5

other such.

6

deliberately hold back his statement until the point

7

when the voters already were getting absentee ballots

8

and voting was happening.

9

weeks before the election day.

10

11

(

body lS here to hear about today.

The fact of the matter was he did

The election starts three
It doesn't happen on

election day anymore.
He did not file with the County Clerk as

12

required by the -- by the County Code.

13-

clearly stated in the County Code.

14

who has been on the County Council for 22 years, -had

15

filed the same form annually.

16

It's very

This is a gentleman

He knows how this works.

And the form he did file was a disgrace.

It

17

was -- showed other utter contempt for the process and

18

it showed a disrespect for the voters' right to know.

19

That -- that form is so incomplete it's a joke.

20

stands as a final statement, then

21

--

If that

then let it be.

You're gOlng to hear today that he's just a

22

bumbling guy, he has a hard time getting his paperwork

23

in order and he just kind of fumbles along.

24

believe that In this case)' I got a bridge to sell you.

25

rf you

Wayne Nishiki is a seasoned pOlitician.
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1

he played his cards very carefully in this case.

2

held back his hand as long as he possibly could because

3

he knew he was carrying a bombshell that would blow up

4

his campaign.
How do I know that?

5

Look how he played Don

6

Couch.

7

report, he was pounclng on it.

8

exactly where -- where the cards were and he went right

9

to it.

As soon as Don Couch filed his campaign spending
That's the man who knew

The point today is not about hypocrisy.

10

(

He

It is

11

not gamesmanship.

12

our political process.

13

point is, this was a deliberate effort to deceive the

14

voters.

15

Because that's -- that's germane to
It's just part of the game.

And it worked.

The

The ploy worked.

I ask you to take this to the next step and

16

consider issuing a charge and petitioning the Second

17

Circuit Court to impeach this gentleman from office once

18

he's there.

19

Thank you.

20

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

21

Mr. DeLeon?

22

(Silence.)

23

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

Thank you very much.

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

24

.
25

Any questions for

Next testifier, Karen Chun.

-

MS. KAREN CHUN:

Aloha, Board Members.
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1

here to speak on Item 5 and 6, Wayne Nishiki.

2

is Karen Chun.

3

as I listened to testimony, I realized that having been

4

on the committee of the Sierra Club that selected -- or

5

that determined that we would endorse Wayne Nishiki, you

6

might have questions on the process for me.

7

(

My name

I'm speaking as an individual today, but

Also, the previous gentleman said that Wayne's

8

really akamai and he -- he knew where to find all Don

9

Couch's negative filings.

Guys, that was me.

I -- I

10

came and I said to Wayne, "Wayne, I'm going to make you

11

a website."

12

website."

13

know if- Wayne ever even- looked at the website I made

1'1

him.

15

clever.

And Wayne's like, "Oh, okay.

Go make me a

I'm the one that researched that.

I don't

So thank yeu for telling me I'm -- I'm smart and

16

You've heard all the other points.

I'm not

17

gOlng to reiterate them.

18

consider whether or not Wayne should be barred from

19

v-oting on Dowling proj ects, I'd like to make a

20

distinction between the fact that we may disagree with

21

people, but that does not mean we don't like them.

22

disagree

23

but we have cordial conversations.

24

against the man personally.

25

that if you oppose somebody's

strong~y

But one thing, when you

I

with many of Mr. Dowling's projects,
I have nothing

And so there's this idea
proj~cts

-- and, you know,
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1

this is negotiation, this is just business back and

2

forth.

3

we just have to push back.

4

pushing back.

5

a separation between this private loan.

And Mr. Dowling makes all these statements, and

6

And he's still gonna be good.

So there's

I think if you were to say he can't speak on

7

Dowling issues, that would be the same thing as telling

8

somebody who has a mortgage with First Hawaiian that

9

they can't speak on issues that come up where -- where

10

First Hawaiian Bank has anything to do with it.
To those who say, "How is he going to pay this

11

(

Wayne's really good at

12

back with $18,000 income" -- I am appalled that the

13

Chamber of Commerce does not realize tha-t you subtract

14

your --loan payments, which are almost entirel-y intere_st,

15

as business expenses.

16

paying back the loan.

17
18

So that that $18,000 is after

The last thing I'd like to say is it just
absolutely amazes me that everybody I saw come up here

19 - with this false ou-trage about, "Oh, I would have changed

20

my vote," is a pro-Dowling supporter.

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

22

MS. KAREN CHUN:

23-

Are you done?
Yeah.

Did you have any

questions

24

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

25

MS. KAREN CHUN:

I

do.
-- about the Sierra Club?
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1
2

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:
Club.

I just want to help you.

3

MS. KAREN CHUN:

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.
If you're filing your taxes

5

and making mortgage interest a business expense, you

6

better see a lawyer.

7

MS. KAREN CHUN:

8

maybe I misunderstood.

9

and not a mortgage.

10
11

(

No, not about the Sierra

Oh, my

I thought it was a business loan

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:
see lawyers.

Thank you.

No questions?

13

(Silence.)

14

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

MR. JIMMY CONNIFF:

Hi.

My name lS Jimmy

Conniff.

18

Right before you started, I didn't think I

19

would be called upon.

20

testifying.

21
22

Next tecstifier, Jimmy

Conniff.

16
17

Well, maybe we should all

Thank you very much.

12

15

my understanding --

I thought it'd be a lot of folks

From what I gather so far, I'm supposed to
state

23

I

believe it's Number 5 that I'm speaking on.
My purpose of comlng today was maybe I

24

sometimes thinks that I don't really count, I'm just a

25

voter.

I live in Kihei, I drove this way.

And I have a
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1

lousy collection in my truck, but I wanted to stand

2

and -- I guess I'm out of line.

3

Mr. Nishiki.

4

I've learned, conflict of interest.

5

And I see no, in my heart, and from what

I was worried that there were people that

6

would come forth and say, "Well, I voted for him and now

7

I wanna change my vote."

8

for, but I just want to say I'm here to support him.

9

believe him to be honest, kind and principle.

10

(

I wanted to support

I'm not gonna say who I voted

Thank you.

12

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

13

Any questions?

1-4

(Silence. )

15

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Thank you very much.

Next testifier, James

Takayesu.
MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

17
18

Takayesu.

19

what's consirlered a note.

20

And

that's it.

11

16

I

Hello.

I'm James

I will be speaking on Items 3, 4, 5, 6, and

The reason I'm talking about the minutes is I

21

believe the minutes of December 12 basically outline

22

what Old Business is.

23

minutes, it was just a matter of examination of

24

Mr. Nishiki's form, disclosure form,

25

consideration of a letter advising him of his conflict

And based on my review of those

and~

also, to
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1

of interest.

2

And based on the minutes, I believe the Ethics

3

Commission is correct, he has a duty to disclose and

4

recuse himself.

5

yourself from voting.

6

refrain from participating in discussions, or he's going

7

ahead and he can raise issues about any project which

8

Mr. Dowling may have on the table, he just cannot vote

9

for it.

10

(

And my understanding is that you recuse
He will not be required to

I think at the time the loan was made

11

Mr. Dowling never thought Mr. Nishiki would be running

12

agaln.

13

have done, creat-ed this relationship whe-re you could

14

have

15

could attack your project, and you would never get his

16

vote because he's -- he could not vote.

17

Charter, a non-vote is a no vote because you need five

18

affirmative votes to take any official action.

19

given loans to five of the CQuncil Members, he would

20

have absolutely no chance of getting anything approved.

21

Because that is the worst thing that he could

Wayn~,

you couldn't shut- him up, bBcause now he

Under our

Had he

I mentioned that because, in the paper, he had

22

comments, this information had indicated that somehow

23

these people who voted for Wayne because they were

24

antidevelopment were misled and now, for some rEason,

25

they would be prejudiced.

I don't see any prejudice in

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (808) 244-9300

71
1

terms of that perspective.

2

In terms of the New Business, my concern with

3

this

4

what the topic is, okay, they're just letters.

lS

5

(

that, by reading the agenda, you have no idea

And Old Business, I think Financial Disclosure

6

should have been a little bit more specific, indicating

7

for a review of the -- of his disclosure statement.

8

When you say Financial Disclosure, you kind of open it

9

up totally so that we don't even know what's really

10

going to be discussed unless you read the old -- old

11

minutes.

12

started talking about impeachment and all kinds of other

13

things.

14

And that's why I think a lot of people have

Dn the question

u~

notes, Executive Session

15

relates to evaluation of officer or employee of the

16

County of Maui.

17

There's testimony that he will not take office until

18

January 2nd.

19

there, it WQuld be improper for you to discuss anything

20

like that at this meeting while he is not an officer.

21

And Mr. Nishiki is not an officer.

So even if that Executive Session noted

The question of ethics, he did comply with

22

October 16 deadline.

And under the rules, this

his

23

failure

24

deadline could have been made available to the public as

25

of October 9th.

first of all, his failure to meet the

Under your own rules, the Board is

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (SOS) 244-9300

72
1

authorized to make that letter available to the public

2

and even to the -- even for news releases.

3

had been done, that would have been in the open.

4

Wayne had no control over that and he had no control

5

over the fact that Brian Moto failed to transmit the

6

documents down to County Clerk under the normal --

7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

8

documents.

9

he did not have them.

10

(

And if it
But

Mr. Moto didn't have the

Mr. Moto could not transmit the documents,

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

Okay.

I read In the

11

paper, it said it was filed with his office.

12

understanding is Corp Counsel staffs this Board.

13

when it was submitted to the Board, it-was actually

14

delivered to his office.

15

in the paper indicating that he -- his office failed to

16

transmit it down at County Clerk until after the

17

election.

18

Because my
So

Again, I'm -- -just what I read

When you look at what has transpired here,

19

Wayne did what -- what the Board requested him to do.

20

He filed his Financial Disclosure Statement on the 16th.

21

I looked at the State -- some of the State

22

documents.

And I really like the way they proceed.

23

After a deadline, they immediately have a press release

24

notifying that people have filed their -- their

25

financial statements, tell people where you can obtain
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1

copies and inspection, they also tell people who missed

2

the deadline.
Now, in our case, we have 15 days after you

3

4

file your papers.

5

rule where, the last day of filing for nomination

6

papers, at the next meeting, you go ahead and consider

7

something like this, so people will know who missed the

8

deadline.

9

notify the public, this candidate has filed their

10

And then, also, when they do file, you also

papers, they are now available for inspection.

11
12

Maybe the Board should consider a

In terms of the late date, this news release,
OHA's candidates, there's -- their deadline is October

13_ 15.

So in this case, Octoher 16,th, it wasn't so late

14 -that the public could not have been made aware of his
15
16

his filing.
Again, he did what the Board requested.

He

17

cannot be responsible for Corp Counsel not taking it

18

down to County Clerks in a timely fashion, or the Board

19

not dBciding to do a public press release on the 9th, of

20

that letter, notifying the public that Mr. Nishiki had

21

failed to comply with that 15-day deadline.

22

It was interesting, on October 8th meeting,

23

the Chair did discuss the duty to maybe let the public

24

know that Mr. Nishiki missed the deadline.

25

Again, they're saying that he somehow hid this
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1

information from the public.

2

him, submitted it on the 16th.

3

between then and the election was not -- not his fault.

4

And I don't think there was any kind of conspiracy of

5

the Board or Corp Counsel to hide this information from

6

the public because it was in the County's hands at that

7

time.

8
9

(

He did what was asked of
And what happened

I also like to make one thing.

Our political

system, to a large degree, is based on self-interest.

10

That's why people make contributions to candidates.

And

11

we have this fiction that if it's a legal contribution,

12

it doesn't create a conflict of interest.

Even if you

13 .. can -- a dev:.elopercan g_et all his p-eopre,. firms
14

associated with him In a project, to then make $2,000

15

here, until it adds up to maybe $40,000, that you never

16

have to pay back.

17

say, "Oh, there's no conflict of interest."

18

reality, we all understand that people make

19

contributions to candidates to further their own

20

interests.

21

system, we'll say that, as a matter of law, there's no

22

conflict.

But because it is a contribution, we

And -- and, yet, because that's part of our

23

Any questions?

24

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

25

When, in

disclDsure~

In the interest of full

Mr. Takayesu, are you speaking as a member
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1

of the public or as counsel to Mr. Nishiki?

2

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

3

Mr. Nishiki.

4

because Isaac wanted me to be, also, a member of their

5

team.

6

to do that.

7

Mr. Nishiki.

9

I know there's an article came in there,

But I had told them that I was -- was not going

8

I was interested in testifying on behalf of

So I did contact Ed Tanji.
weekend

And that

was it Saturday or Sunday -- there was a

10

correction made that I was not part of his retained

11

legal team.

12
(

I'm not counsel to

Again, I voted for Mr. Nishiki.

And there are

13

many times that I nave not disagreed -- I'-ve disagree-d

14

with hrs

15

that he added a better perspective to the Council so

16

that the end result will be better.

17
18

his-style, but I always believed

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you for sharing that

thought, Mr. Takayesu.

19
20

positions~

Do Members of the Board have qUEstions
specifically for Mr. Takayesu?

21

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

22

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

And if you like -I would like to point one

Z3

thing out to you.

And this has come up repea-tedly

24

already.

25

entirely separate requirements as far as filing

But I want to point out that there are two
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1

Financial Disclosure Statements.

Filing with the Board

2

of Ethics, the purpose of which is so that the Board can

3

identify potential conflicts of interest and give

4

corresponding advice to the public official as laid out

5

in Section 04-101-36 of the Board's rules; and, two,

6

filing with the County Clerk, the purpose of which is so

7

that the public can be informed of circumstances which

8

could lead to a possible bias affecting the votes or

9

decisions of a public official.

This could involve the

10

official's investments, debts or real property

11

interests.

12

financial ties to a person or companies who might be

13

bringing their business before that individual, before

14-

that official.

15

And it includes the situation we have here,

For the General Election, Mr. Nishiki

16

eventually did do the first of the two required filings

17

to the Board of Ethics, albeit late.

18

public filing and it was never intended to be a public

19

filing.

20

to file the Financial Disclosure with the County Clerk.

21

In fact, Section 2-56-60 of the County Code says, "All

22

confidential Financial Disclosure Statements shall be

23

filed with the

24

confidential.

25

public disclosures being filed with the Board.

But that is not a

It is not the Board of Ethics' responsibility

If

Boar~

of Ethics, and shall be

And it does not- say anything about
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1

course, it does not contemplate that the Board of Ethics

2

will forward any Financial Disclosures to the County

3

Clerk as a matter of fact.

4

that can happen, but there is certainly no requirement

5

for it to.

Mr. Takayesu?
MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

8
9

10

Okay.

Under 101-30, it

says, "The Board shall make such Financial Disclosures
available for public inspection."
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

11

(

And I hope we've clarified that point.
Are there any other questions for

6
7

As a matter of courtesy,

And the Board must meet In

12

order to know that a Financial Disclosure has been

13

received-.

14

-MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

15

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

16

No.

My understanding --

The Board only meets once a

month.

17

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

18

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

19

have our own jobs to do.

That's right.

We're public citizens who all

20

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Right.
I just want to make clear

22

that the Financial Disclosure was received after we had

23

met.

24

until our next meeting, which was only after the General

25

Election.

So it was not reviewed or brought into our hands

And I think that's clear.
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1

Are there any other questions --

2

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

4

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

-- for Mr. Takayesu?
The rules also say that

5

you will examine the Financial Disclosure Statement in a

6

public meeting.

7

secret what is filed by a candidate or an officer as

8

opposed to an employee or a board.

9

It does not say that you can keep

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

10

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

11

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

12

(

Excuse me.

intent

b~

Right.

There was no -- there was no

the Board to keep it secret.
MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

13

You are correct.

that.

15

Corp Counsel and County Clerk, they will tell you that

16

their practice has been to, when somebody files in one

17

of the places, they will

th~re

was --

I know

14

18

And

Oh, yeah, I know.

but~the

~-

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

19

argument there, Mr. Takayesu.

20

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

21

broke down.

22

to deceive the public.

23

behest of Mr. Nishiki.

24
25

-- if you check with

Correct.

There's no -- no

And for some reason, it

And I don't think it was done on purpose,
And it was not done at the

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Mr. Takayesu, possibly you

could make clear for the entire Board, including myself,
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1

are you saYlng that as long as it was -- the Financial

2

Disclosure was received before the election, that it has

3

been available for inspection?

4

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

5

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

6

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

7

you sent out that letter --

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

(

That is correct.
Thank you very much.
And I -- also, that when

Thank you very much.

We

need to cut off.

10

MR. JAMES TAKAYESU:

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.
This is painful.

Go.

I

12

will -- I really want to_get through public testimony

13

before we recess.

14 --

I do w-ant to read -- all the Chair-is trying

15

to do is be very clear.

16

wants to do is to be fair and impartial.

17

gOlng to make emotion-based decisions.

18

What every member of this Board
We are not

Section 10-3, Financial Disclosures.

All

13

elected County officers, all £andidates for elective

20

County office, and such appointed officers, or other

21

employees as the Council shall designate by ordinance,

22

shall file with the Board of Ethics and the County Clerk

23

Financial Disclosures in a form or forms to be

24

prescribed by the Board of Ethics.

Such Financial

25- Disclosures shall be open to public inspection.
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1

There was a single copy of Mr. Nishiki's

2

Financial Disclosure that would have been available at

3

the Board of Ethics, but not with the County Clerk, had

4

anyone corne to ask for it.

5
6

We will not recess.

We are gOlng to have a

very brief pause.

7

How many more speakers do we have?

8

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Four.

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Who is the next speaker?

10

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Glenn Kosaka.

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Mr. Kosaka, would you like

12

to corne forward?

13

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

14-CHAIRMAN KAUFMA-N :

Sure.
Mr. Ko-saka,

wD~uld-

you like

15

to state your name and the item or items you wish to

16

address?

17
18
19
20

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:
Kosaka.

Yeah.

My name is Glenn

I will address Items 3, 4, 5.and 6.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

That gives you a total of

eight minutes.

21

Mr. Kosaka, for the record, would you like to

22

inform the Board and the public, are you speaking as an

23

individual or as counsel to Mr. Nishiki?

24
25

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

I think it could be

considered both, but I signed up as an individual, Slr.
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1

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

2

Wait just a minute.

3

wait for Mr. Aluli to return.

4

That will be fine.

Before you begin, we will

Corporation Counsel tells me that my bladder

5

control is better than everybody else's.

6

Board like to recess at this time?

7

MEMBER GUY:

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

Would the

Let's hear the speakers.
How many

would like to recess at this time?

10

MEMBER WUKELIC:

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

how many people

No?

Let's do it.
Okay.

We're just gonna

hold it.

12

(

Okay.

Mr. Kosaka, you can begin.

13~
..

IYIR._ GLENN KOSAKA:

14

Thank you, Mr. Chairman-.

15

believe Vice-Chairman Aluli was not here when I

16

identified myself.

My name is Glenn Kosaka.

Throughout this afternoon, I've heard various

17
18

people comment, variously, about this process.

19

the points made was we'll follnw the law.

20

that's what lid like this Board to do, follow the law.

21

And not the rhetoric.

22

Mr. Nishiki of hiding behind attacks on others to hide

23

their own infirmities.

24

themselves have these infirmities.

25

-~ut

to show

that~

One of

And, yes,

Some people have accused

But these others might
I only point them

hey, you know, everybody makes errors
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1

and not everybody is squeaky clean.

2

One of the things that I believe the County

3

produces, either this Board of Ethics or the County

4

Clerk, is a roster.

5

candidates, when they filed the nomination papers, the

6

dates they filed 'ern, when this Board accepted them, and

7

when they went to the County Clerk.

8
9

Okay.

I believe that the list of roster this year
had 22 candidates for -- for County office.

Fully, four

10

of them filed late under the rule that says you got 15

11

days after you file.

12

(

The roster shows the names of the

Because it's irrelevant, I'll only talk about

13

two of these candidates.

14

filed late, under the rules, WBsmore than

15

another one was Mr. Couch, he also filed late.

16

who supported -- who are supporting Don Couch here and

17

saying that, hey, Nishiki needs to be out of it because

18

he filed late, now, let's think about this now.

19
20

Okay.

One_ is Mr. N-ishiki, he

Are we saying that if you file
day, you should be impeached?

21

~5

late~

days, but
So those

by even a

I don't think so.

As a matter of fact, the same rule that

22

protects Mr. Couch protects Mr. Nishiki.

That is, this

23

Board's own rule, 04-101, it has a whole section orr late

24

filings.

25

late filing?

And what is the Board to do when there's a
It saysJ "The Board-may issue or cause to
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1

be issued a letter of reminder to any person whose

2

Financial Disclosure or annual Financial Disclosure

3

update has not been filed by the deadline set by these

4

rules.

5

that the person file promptly."

6

fact, what this Board did.

7

(

The letter of reminder shall include a request

And, in fact, what

lS

Okay.

That

.

lS,

.

ln

more, the Board's l€tter

8

itself, which is a public record, says that, "This

9

letter is sent to you as a first written reminder that

10

the filing of this disclosure is overdue and must be

11

filed as soon as possible, but no later than 4:30 p.m.

12

on Thursday, October 16, 2008."
What does this mean?

13

Obviously, if this iB a

14

-rirst., it can be a s.econd.

And, in fact, it has been

15

the practice of this Board, as well as the State Board

16

of Ethics, to send two letters.

17

always done, but they sent a letter saying, hey, you're

18

late, after the deadline now, you're late, file.

19

And you file by a certain date.

I don't know if this is

Okay.

20

When they disregard that first letter, they

21

corne out and say -- okay, now it's a certified letter

22

"Listen, buddy, you better file it because we really

23

mean business, we're going to file a charge against

24

you."

25

No such charge has been filed here.
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1

Because Mr. Nishiki complied with the first letter,

2

filed on October 16th, and he did it.

3

Now, where did he have to file this?

4

the letter itself says this:

5

disclosure by Thursday, October 16th, the Board will be

6

forced to initiate a complaint against you, charging you

7

with a violation of the Code of Ethics."

8

enclose another form for him.

9

(

Well,

Well, okay, who

lS

"If we do not receive your

we?

And they also

It's this Board.

10

They filed it with the Board, number one.

11

Number two, the date of this disclosure

lS

12

October 13th, so that four days after the letter was

13

sent out October 9th, he -- he prepared it, I presume,

14-_and it was filed ~on the 16th.

He did what this- Board

15

asked him to do.

16

04-101-37 of your own rules, Mr. Nishiki has not

17

committed a violation of the Ethics Code, and nor has

18

Mr. Couch.

19

Therefore, under Section 101,

I believe that there are certain people here

20

who would like to achieve a political solution by coming

21

to this Board of Ethics and trying to get rid of

22

Mr. Nishiki.

23

governmental entity where laws and procedures are

24

followed.

25

process, this legal process, by politicizing the BDard's

This Board of Ethics is a legal

There are thDse who want to subvert this
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1

deliberations.

2

fall into the trap of allowing them to achieve a

3

political solution through the Board.
This is wrong.

4

And the Board has commendably

5

done its duty and followed the law to date, both in its

6

actions and its processes.

7

At the October 8th meeting, the Board decided

8

to apply Rule 37, and voted to send Mr. Nishiki a

9

letter.

10

(

I'm confident that this Board will not

We went through this.

He complied and filed by

October 16th.

11

At the Board meeting of November 12th, the

12

Board reviewed four disclosure statements, including

13

Mr. _Nishiki' s.

They accepted the thre-e and -said that

14-1 there were only two things -- two --matters remalnlng
15

regarding Mr. Nishiki's disclosure.

16

One, how Mr. Nishiki held title to his

17

residence.

18

taken care of.

19

and indicated that it was with his spouse.

20

And that matter has already been, I think,
Mr. Nishiki contacted the Board's staff

Two, approval of a standard letter from the

21

Board based on Rule 04-101-37 informing Mr. Nishiki that

22

the existence of the loan for Mr. Dowling would require

23

him to disclose it and recuse himself to avoid a

24

potential conflict of interest whenever a matter

25

relating to Mr. Dowling is taken up by the -- by the
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1

Council.

2

And I think that the Board has one task remaining today.

3

That is to review that letter which you approved at the

4

November 12th meeting and have it sent out, if that's

5

the Board's desire.

6

Thank you.

7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

8

Do any Members of the Board have questions for

9
10
11
12

(

And so the title has already taken care of it.

13

Thank you, Mr. Kosaka.

Mr. Kosaka?
MEMBER LEACH:

Mr. Chair, one question for

Mr. Kosaka.
With the requirement of filing the Financial
Disclosure, how do

yOD

look at not filing with the

14 - County Clerk?
15

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

This was due to -- well, I

16

come to the conclusion that it was not improper because

17

of what the standard practice had been.

18

correctly pointed out, this is not a rule.

As the Chairman
This is not,

19-you know, something that has to be done by either party.
20

But Mr. Takayesu, I believe, referred to the

21

process which had been standard for a long time, which

22

is the County Clerk got the original ethics disclosure

23

statement, they kept a copy of it and sent the original

24

to the Board; if the Board got it, the Board kept the

25

origin-al and sent a copy to the -County Clerk.
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1

went that way.

2

what has happened in -- in years past.

3

was still happening today.

That has been, to my knowledge,
And I felt it

So as -- as everybody noted, maybe we need to

4
5

reVlew those procedures.

6

Board did anything wrong and I don't think Mr. Nishiki

7

did anything wrong.

Okay.

But I don't think the

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

I do have a couple comments or possibly

Thank you, Mr. Kosaka.

10

questions.

11

action on Mr. Nishiki's Financial Disclosure.

12

(

Okay.

....

13:

At the last meeting, the Board deferred

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

Correct .

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

We

14

information.

15

today.

wanted~to

goet additional

And-that is what we will be acting on

We will be gathering additional information.
Also, again, the timing of the disclosure.

16

It

17

was available for nearly three weeks before the General

18

Election and nobody asked for it.

19

been available for public inspection before the

20

election, would you consider that to have been a

21

separate issue that would be worthy of the Board's

22

review?

23

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

If the form had not

That's possible.

24

think there are two separate facts here.

25

bOard is a board and op-erates by its own rules.

But I

The Board is a
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election is an election is an election and operates by

2

its own rules.

3

here, noting the fact that Mr. Nishiki was elected,

4

should have filed a challenge to the election, like

5

others did, within 20 days after the election, which

6

made it by November 24th, last month.

7

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

8

in

9

procedure.

10

I would agree with you that

with regard to challenges and the election
The election is totally separate from the

Board's review of the Financial Disclosure.

11

(

So those who have stated their positions

If the Financial Disclosure was not

12

available

13

there was nearly three weeks for it to be available.

14

But- if it had not beEn available Tor the public, v·lQuld

15

you have considered that an issue?

16

it was available for the public, because

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

I don't know.

I haven't

17

glven it much thought because that wasn't the fact

18

pattern here.

19

Nnw, it might have happ€ned _before, I've not

20

looked at State Ethics Board's opinions regarding this

21

matter.

22

oplnlons regarding the late filing of disclosure

23

statements.

24

they have issued informal -- not formal now -- informal

25

advisory opinions, but only when the officer failed to

However, I have looked at State Ethics Board's

And what they have done, inva-riably, is
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1

respond and file after the second letter, as far as I

2

know, or at least after a charge was filed.

3
4

Thank you, Mr. Kosaka.

I

think that's an excellent point.

5

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

Thank you.

6

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Next testifier, Shell

7

(

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Hansson.

8

MR. SHELL HANSSON:

Aloha.

(Hawaiian.)

9

We all know this is -- what is all about, big

10

development, developments, and against.

11

opportunistic efforts by the developers to attack Wayne.

12

The media fringes has stirred up unfair accusations.

13

Those of us who know Wayne know he would- not. do -anything

14

like has bEen passinq us by here.

15

Wayne stands for the people and the aina.

16

that's why he is being grilled.

17

Thank you.

18

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

19

(Silence.)

21

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

22

MS. KRISTI UEOKA:

Mahalo nUl.
Next testifier, Anthony

Ranken.

24

MR. ANTHONY

25

Mr. Chair, Members of the Board.

RANKEN~

And

Are there any questions for

Mr. Hansson?

20

23

I see these as

Good afternoon,
I -1 m te-stifying on
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Items 5 and 6.

2

attorney.

My name is Anthony Ranken.

I'm a voter.
And, incidentally, I was once a member of this

3

4

Board.

5

with such a thorny issue.

6

big bucks.

7

And you all have my sYmpathy for having to deal
This is why you get paid the

I wasn't gOlng to testify today, I just came

8

to watch, because, in those three roles, I was very

9

interested in these proceedings.

But I was inspired to

10

get up because most of what I've heard today is all

11

about blame.

12

bias.

Some people have blamed The Maui News for

Some people have blamed the Corporation Counsel

13 'or its secretarie-s or clerks, or whateV"er_f

i

\

I'm an

for not

14

forwardIng the Financial Disclosure, -to the other County

15

Clerk are making it public.

16

other candidates were late In filing their disclosures,

17

too.

18

there are a lot of psychics among us, a lot of people in

19

this room who think they can read Mr. Nishiki's mind and

20

know what was gOlng on there when he didn't file his

21

disclosure on time.

22

disorganized and would never do this intentionally, and

23

the other half believe he's downright Machiavellian and

24

the timing of his filing was carefully orchestrated.

25

Some have pointed out that

And many have blamed Mr. Nishiki.

Apparently,

Half of them tell you he's just

Personally, I cannot read Wayn€'s mind.
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1

don't know.

2

What I do know is that none of us will ever

3

know, besides Wayne Nishiki, whether this was a careless

4

error because he was too busy or because he didn't get

5

around to it, or if the delay was intentional, to avoid

6

publication, to avoid public knowledge of the Dowling

7

loan.

We- will never know.

8
9

And this Council can hold impeachment
proceedings for days on end and receive testimony and

10

still be no closer to knowing what was in his mind last

11

summer when Wayne delayed filing his statement.

12

(

But as I said, I think that it would be

13

helpful if we could get beyond the blame of all those

14

potential parties.

15

few things that we can all agree on, if we're honest

16

with ourselves, everybody in this room.

17

question -- the question of a candidate's financial ties

18

to developers was an important issue in this particular

19

campalgn.

20

the explicit basis of the Maui Time Weekly endorsing Don

21

Couch over Mr. Nishiki, because he had received

22

contributions from developers.

23

affected the way some voters viewed the two candidates

24

and which way they voted.

25

votes in that particular race.

And. I think that maybe there are- a

One is that a

It was raised by Mr. Nishiki himself.

It was

And it doubtless

The electoral gap was 2,000
Did it affect 1,000
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1

people so that they would have changed their minds and

2

tipped the election to Don Couch?

3

of us know.

don't know.

None

The second thing I think we can all agree on

4

5

is that Mr. Nishiki did fail to comply with the deadline

6

that's in the Charter, the Constitution of our County,

7

as well as In the Code.
And the third thing I think that's become

8

clear is that County personnel who did receive his

9

(

I

10

Financial Disclosure before the General Election did not

11

think to make it public immediately.

12

As a result of those two things occurrlng, I

13

think we -can all agree that the voters did not receive

14

tha"t information, which, -by law, they were entitled to

15

receive.
And, finally,

16

I

think we should all be able to

17

agree that the democratic process, because of these

18

occurrences, did not work In the way that it was

19

supposed to work.

And a lot of people say that it won't

affect Wayne's votes on the Council, that this -- this

20
,-

21

loan, that he is above that.

And they may be right, but

22

tnat is not for anyone in this room to decide.

That lS
1

23

for the voters to decide.

And the voters are to decide

24

that based on information that is supposed to be

25

furnished to them in a publicly-filed Financial
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1

Disclosure Statement, before they go to the polls and

2

vote.

3
4

there's any need for it.

5

of Maui County.

6

revote.

7

(

So let's get beyond the blame.

I don't think

It's not good for the people

I say let's just go ahead and have a

Wayne, if you, In fact, did not mean to

8

withhold information from the voters, then the way you

9

can prove that, and the way you can help Maui heal from

10

this mess, is to withdraw and then stand for election

11

again and let the voters decide the outcome, now that

12

they will have both candidates' financial information as

l3

they are supposed to have.

14

I believe that-Is the only way that we can

move~

15

beyond this without further distress, trauma and

16

distraction from the business of our County Council and

17

what we should all be focusing on, which is the real

18

issues that face Maui County.

19

leas-t painless -- least painful way that we can move

20

beyond it, and the most democratic.

21

Thank you.

22

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

23
24

25

And it's certainly the

Mr. Ranken, thank you for

those well thought out comments.
Do any Members of the Board have questions for
Mr. Ranken?
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1

(Silence. )

2

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

3

a story.

4

playground when someone doesn't play by the rules, but

5

you still want them in the game.

6

that's easy, daddy.

7

'ern play fair."

8
9

I asked my eight-year-old what they do on the

You just have a do-over and make

Board, can display as much insight as a third-grader.
We will -- is that our last -- one more.

11

I thought we were there.

12

please.

Okay.

MoS. KRISTI UEOKA:

13
14

And he said, "Well,

I hope that Mr. Nishiki, as well as this

10

(

If not, the Chair has to share

Levin.

Oh,

The next testifier,

The next testliieris Doug

_He is going to be testifying on Item Number 6.
MR. DOUG LEVIN:

15

I beg the Board's pardon.

I

16

know I was here before, but I'm gonna borrow a tactic

17

from the Nishiki camp so that I can finish what I -- my

18

written comments or my oral testimony.

19

~I've

And given what

heard today, I think _a lot of it is very relevant.
I took some notes on this, but now my wife

20

21

texted me and I lost them.

22

them up.

So I won't bother to look

But when I last was speaking to you, I left

23

Okay.

I said, "He goofed. "

Wayne carne out

24

you here.

25

and said that he was not for sale, that Couch was
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1

accepting money from major developers, and he said, once

2

you start accepting donations, you are no longer able to

3

remaln independent.

4

public servants.

5

(

People really want independent

And then I went on to say that there was a

6

word for what he did, I called it a lie.

7

advanced form of lying.

8

they admit they did something wrong, but an adult form.

9

Okay.

It's an

Not the type children use when

He had, obviously, knowingly committed lies of

10

omission before the Sierra Club and others.

11

part that I missed at the time.

12

relevant now.

13

he can't hide behindhisdisor-ganiz-ation anYmore.

14

During the campaign, he apparently ----and I'm not sure

15

if these facts are correct.

16

calls from the Ethics Board, including a letter,

17

requesting his forms.

18

being disorganized at first, but, by the third or fourth

19

call, he must have realized at that time that, if he

20

filed late, he could hide that loan.

21

insight, his conscience changed.

22

disorganized, now it was deliberate.

23

This is the

And I think it's

However, now that he said these things,

He, apparently, got SlX

One can imagine him actually

At this moment of

Even if he was

No candidate s-hould be impeached be-cause forms

24

are late.

Yet, when our community can see the rules

25

broken deliberately, with malice aforethought, we must
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1

respond, or all future candidates for office will be

2

safe to hide information the public is required to see.
I forgive your indulgence letting me come up

3

4

agaln.

5

Board.

I greatly appreciate your time.

6

(

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Thank you,

Mr. Levin, I've got to

7

comment.

None of us, again, are mind-readers.

8

out the logical possibility that Mr. Nishiki is not only

9

disorganized, he may also be forgetful.

10

another possibility.

11

logical.
MR. DOUG LEVIN:

13

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

15

Remember that's

Your conclusion is not necessarily

12

14 : testimony.

Thank you.
We are now done with public

We will rece-ss until quarter of three, and

we will go from there.

16

(Recess, 2:35 p.m. to 2:47 p.m.)

17

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

18

You left

We're gonna end our recess

and we're back in session.

19

As we move into our next item of business, I

20

want to make a note that we have received extensive

21

written testimony prior to the meeting.

22

it's a total of 33 individuals submitted written

23

testimony.

24

Mr. Nishiki; one was neutral; and the remaining 30 were

25

calling for impeachment or resignation or for the Board

And I believe

Two of them were, basically, in favor of

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (808) 244-9300

9-7

1

to simply take action.

2

(

And I want to read into the record the names

3

of those individuals who have submitted written

4

testimony.

5

I'm wondering if our Executive Secretary -- no.

6

stay right there.

7

you?

Actually, I am probably losing my voice.
You

Our assistant -- or Vice -- what are

8

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

Vice-Chair.

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Our Vice-Chair lS gOlng to

10

read the names of the individuals who have submitted

11

written testimony for this meeting.

12

Thank you.

13

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:Thank you,

14

These are the names of the indrvidua-ls who

Mr~

Chair.

15

have submitted written testimony on the issue before the

16

Board of Ethics:

17

from -- written correspondence is from Mr. Glenn Kosaka.

18

The second one is from Antoinette Polancy.

19

one is Laurence Christopher.

20

Next is Buck Joiner.

21

Trotto.

22

Michael Howden.

Catherine Clark.

23

Robert Poulson.

Harlan Hughes.

24

Poree-Hogin.

25

The first piece of correspondence is

The third

Next is Adina McNamara.

Then Leona Rocha Wilson.

Catherine and Norman Clark.

Michael

Cindy Biggers.

Carol Carolan.
Rick Colletto.

Rosie

And I'll ask the recording secretary if they
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1

would like me to spell any of those last names?
David DeLeon.

2

3

Willett.

4

Sylvia Cabral.

5

Goode.

6

Chermomcka.

Gerald and Diana Olsen.
Dwayne Betsill.

Linda Wish.

Veronica

Coralie and Will

Katherine Scheper.
Lafayette Young.

David

or, I'm sorry, Victoria

C.A. Ladley.

7

Is it mine?

8

VIDEO TECHNICIAN:

There you go.

9

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

Did you get C.A. Ladley?

Pamela Tumpap.

10
11

(

Hans Riecke.

Okay.

Madaya.

Chris M. Minford.

Paul "Pali" Laub.

And Don Varny.

12

That's all the written testimony.

13

MEMBER

14

was- joint with Isaac Hall.

15

GUY~

The first item

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Kevin

~rom

Dwayne Kosaka

Thank you for pointing that

IWADO COURT REPORTERS (SOS) 244-9300

99
1

the Board finds no conflict of interest or other matter

2

of concern arising under the Code of Ethics, the Board

3

shall acknowledge receipt of the Financial Disclosure

4

and file it.

5

interest or other concern arising under the Code of

6

Ethics is found, the Board shall acknowledge the receipt

7

of the submission and shall advise the person of the

8

conflict of interest or other matter of concern arising

9

under the Code of Ethics and the person's obligations

10

and responsibilities to avoid violation of the Code of

11

Ethics."

12

(

If, after examination, a conflict of

And then from the Code, 10-2(e), "The Board

..

di~closure

13

shall examine all

14

comment on or advise corrective- action as to any matters

15

that may indicate a conflict of interest."
The Chair stands corrected by Corporation

16

17
18
19
20

statements filed, and to

Counsel.

The last one is from the Charter.
Per 04-101-36, the Board is ready to examine

Mr. Nishiki's Financial DiscloBure Form.
Mr. Nishiki, would you come up to the

21

microphone, please?

And, for the record, state your

22

name and position with Maui County.

23

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

24

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

25

Wayne Nishiki.
Thank you for being here,

Mr. Nishiki.
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1

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

2

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

The Chair will start by

3

simply revlewlng your submission.

4

number of questions4

5

ask Mr. Nishiki questions.

6
7

9

And I'll ask you a

And then the Board will be able to

Item Number 1 of your disclosure states that
you are retired.

8

(

Thank you.

What is the date of your retirement?

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:
of the Council,

Whew.

When I last got out

'74, I guess.

10

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

I'm sorry.

11

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

12

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

13

Item Number 1 of your disclosure shows $18,000

Excuse me.

'74?
'04.

'04.

14 -in annual e-empensation.W-l:J.at is the source of that
15

income?

16
17

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

That's my retirement

income from the County of Maui.

18

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

19

disclosure shows N/A for your wife's

20

does N/A stand for here and throughout the document?

21
22
23

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

Item Number 1 of your
occupatio~.

What

N/A occupation, she's not

employed.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

So not -- does not apply,

24

then, is that what the N/A stands for?

25

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

If the question was what
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1

was my wife's occupation, it lS that she's not employed,

2

to answer the question.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.

5

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

No.

6

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

3
4

7

(

Is your wife

retired?

Item 1 shows that she

receives no compensation, is that correct?

8

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

That's true.
Item Number 2 asks for

10

other earnlngs, incomes or compensation in any form.

11

You report N/A; is that correct?

12

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

13 -

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

14-

Yes.
So that means you re-celve

none?

15

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

16

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

None.
Item Number 3 asks for

17

ownership or beneficial interest held in any company

18

carrying on business In the state.

19

that

You report N/A; is

~orrect?

20

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

That's true.

21

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Meaning none?

22

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

23

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Yes.
Item Number 4 asks for each

24

creditor interest currently held by you in an insolvent

25

business.

You report N/A.
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MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

2

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

3

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

That's true.
So there are none?
None.
Item Number 5 asks for debt

5

creditors and amount owed.

6

submission, you report a mortgage of 35

7

owed to Countrywide Home Loan.

8

mortgage?
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

9

10

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

MR. WAYNE

14

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

the date of that

God, I don't know.

But

Can you just approximate

NISHIKI~

Yes.
Do_ Y-Ou know wha-"t year you

took the mortgage out?

16
17

lS

what year?

13

15

What

$355,387.77

could give it to you.

11
12

At the time of your

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

I'm not sure.

Two years,

I would think, maybe.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

18
19

sing~e

20

mortgage?

About two years.

Is this a

mortgage debt or is there a first and second

21

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

22

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

I think it's a single.
And -- okay.

Item Number 5

23

reports Dowling Company as a creditor in the amount of

24

$100,000.

25

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

That is
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1

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Pardon me?

2

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

Go ahead.

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

4

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

5

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

7

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

'05.
What is the current balance

$100,000.
And what is the interest

rate?

12

14

What is the date of that

of that note?

10

13

Yes.

note?

6

(

That's correct?

-

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

I think it was five

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

What are the repayment

p-ercent.

provisions?

And by that --

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

I think it was to be paid

in five years.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Is there a balloon payment

or interest only?
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

I'm not sure.

I know it's

a five percent interest.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Item Number 6 asks if you

24

hold positions as officer, director or trustee.

25

report N/A; is that correct?
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1

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

2

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

3

Yes.
So that means none,

correct?

4
5
6
7

8
9

10

Yes.

11
12

(

-- recorded In Item Number

5?

r3

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

r4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Yes.
Item Number 7 shows that

15

you reported to the Executive Secretary, on 11-24-08,

16

that the property is jointly owned with your wife; is

17

that correct?

18

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

19

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

That's true.
Item Number 8, you report

20

you have represented no persons, firms or organizations

21

before the County in the last year; is that correct?

22
23

24
25

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:
Save Honolua.

County -- I represented

I don't know if that's any kina of --

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Before the County, did you

represent them before the County?
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1
2

Mr. Kosaka, you're welcome to join
Mr. Nishiki.
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

3

(

All right.

Okay.

When

4

they say "before the County," what does that mean, I

5

guess?

6

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

7

hearings, did you provide testimony?

8

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

10

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

11

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

If there were public

In the last year?
In the last year.
Yeah, I think I did.
So the Item Number 8, then,

12

needs to be corrected to, yes, rather than -- does it

13

~ay

N!A or no In -- somebody have -MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

14

Okay.

I

--

this is --

15

this is what I did in front of the County Council, I

16

represented Save Honolua.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

17
18

want to make a correction to your submission?

19

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

20

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

21
22
23

On Item Number .8, then, you

Honolua.

Okay.

That is fine.

And you did represent Save

Thank you.
In Item Number 9, you reported no gifts from a

single source with aggregate value at $50 or more; is

24 . that correct?
25

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

That's correct.
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CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

1

2

like to ask Mr. Nishiki questions?

3

MEMBER LEACH:

4

Mr. Nishiki, thank you for coming today.

5

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

6

MEMBER LEACH:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

On Item Number 5, regarding the

7

Dowling loan, is there a written document between both

8

parties?
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

9

10
11

12

(

Would Members of the Board

Yes.

I signed the written

document.
MEMBER LEACH:

Then, also, our secretary, In

clarifying the security glven, has, in parenthesis, "a

13 . business loan."

But then in the disclosure statement,

T4

you show no business ownership of any type.

15

clarify that discrepancy?

16

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Could you

I borrowed the

17

money personally from Everett to try to help my daughter

18

in her business, period.

19

MEMBER LEACH:

20

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

21

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

22

Thank you.
Thank you.
I've got a question for

Mr. Nishiki.

23

Are you a part owner of that business?

24

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

25

VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

No.
So she lS the sole owner?
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1

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

2

MEMBER WUKELIC:

3

(

So just maybe I'm mlsslng

something here.

4

MR. WAYNE NISHIKl:

5

MEMBER WUKELIC:

6

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

7

Yes.

Thank you.

So is it a personal loan?
It was a personal loan

from Everett --

8

MEMBER WUKELIC:

Okay.

9

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

10

MEMBER WUKELIC:

11

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

12

MEMBER WUKELIC:

13

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

14

MEMBER

15

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

~UKELIC~

to me.

So it's not a business loan?
No.

It's personal?
Yes.

Okay.
So we need to make a

16

correction, then, to -- which item are you correcting

17

over there, Marti?

18

MEMBER WUKELIC:

I was looking at Dowling

19

Company, $100,000-, and_ then, you know, our secretary's

20

writing, "pers business," in parenthesis, and she

21

initialed it.

22

change this business to personal.

23
24
25

So I'm asking Mr. Nishiki if we should

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay.

So it '-s a personal

loan, it is not a business loan, correct, Mr. Nishiki?
MR. WAYNE

NISHIKI~

That's true.
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1

MEMBER WUKELIC:

2

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

Excuse me.

3

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Mr. Kosaka.

4

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

I believe Mr. Nishiki

5

stated it was for purposes of his daughter's business.

6

So, in that sense, it's a business loan.

7

borrowed the money, and he didn't say so, but she tried

8

to borrow money, could not, and, therefore, he -- he

9

helped her.

10

MEMBER WUKELIC:

11

would be a business loan?

12

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

(13
14

MEMBER WUKELIC:

He went and

So if she was doing this, it

Yes.
If she was f-illing out this

form.

15

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

16

MEMBER WUKELIC:

Yes.
But since she is not filling

17

out this form, he is filling out this form -- to me, if

18

I do something on behalf of my son, it's personal.

19

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

20

MEMBER WUKELIC:

21

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

22

MEMBER WUKELIC:

23

MR. GLENN KOSAKA:

24
I~

Mahala.

25

Sure-.

I--

So it's personal.
Yes, in a sense.
Thank you.
I'd like to ask that it be

duly noted -CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Okay, Gl-enn, please.
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1

MEMBER WUKELIC:

2

CHAIR KAUFMAN:

3

Is your daughter a cosignatory

to the loan?

4

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

5

MEMBER WESTFALL:

No.
Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, the

6

confusion here, I think, is the purpose of the loan

7

versus who the borrower is.

8

the purpose was for business.

The borrower is personal,

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

(

Thank you.

It's two separate
And I think we've

10

adequately clarified that at this point in time.

11

that's what we are trying to do.

12

MEMBER WUKELIC:

13

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

14

we are

sup~osed

Thank

And

So-~ou.

We're actually doing what

to.

15

A couple of additional questions, Mr. Nishiki.

16

The Bureau of Conveyances public record shows

17

that you purchased the property, on South Kihei Road,

18

February 16, 2007, at a purchase price of $125,ODO.

19

the same day that your property

20

of identical size in the same building, but one floor

21

lower, sold for $392,500.

22

seller of the unit you purchased afford you any special

23

consideration in the purchase of that property?

recorded~

a condominium

And the question

24

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

25

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

On

lS,

did the

Yes.
Could you elaborate on
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2

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

I don't know what it's

3

called, but it was a -- kind of a onetime discount that

4

one can give, I guess is what it's called.

5

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

6

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

7

what she -- she gave to me.

8

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

9

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

It was a discount?
It was a gift, I guess,

Well, a discounted amount.

I don't know what the legal terminology is, but I can

11

get that for you.
CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

lS

Oh, you had a gift?

10

12

(

that?

Okay.

Any elaboration that

13

you can supply would be helpful in that if it was a gift

14

or if i t--wasa discount or somethingt-hat favored you --

15

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

16

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Uh-huh.
-- then it would need to be

17

reported in Item Number 9.

18

have been any gifts received for over $50.

19

MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

Because it asks if there

Okay.

So I'm nOI clear

20

with what that transaction was in the real estate, but I

21

can make that clear when I get the paper, I guess, from

22

the attorney.

23
24
25

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Mr. Nishiki, what is the

monthly mortgage payment for your property?
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

$2,900.
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CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

1

2

What lS -- okay.

We asked

that one.

3

MEMBER WOODS:

May I ask a question?

4

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

5

MEMBER WOODS:

Please.

Can you glve me a timeframe as

6

far as when this took place, this sale or this purchase

7

of property?

8

9

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

The horne -- the horne was

purchased February 16th, 2007.
MEMBER WOODS:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

Within the last year.

And the seller afforded

special consideration to Mr. Nishiki of the difference
hetween $125,000, and given that the other unit might
have been comparable in va-lueof$392, 500.
MEMBER WOODS:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN KAUFMAN:

And Mr. Nishiki has offered

to clarify how that carne about.
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:

What that discount --

yeah, why Lt was included.
VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

Chair, just -- excuse me --

for my clarification, are we talking about the property
at 2895 South Kihei Road or is it the
MR. WAYNE NISHIKI:
VICE-CHAIR ALULI:

Yes.
Okay.

You mentioned

another property, or did I misunderstand?
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